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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 21, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Suhunu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with one of the vendors listed
below, Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc., for the provision of
Emergency Solutions Grant Services, by increasing the total price limitation by $74,852 from
$3,245,497 to $3,320,349 with no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2021
effective upon Governor and Council approval. The original contracts were approved by Governor
and Council on June 29. 2016, item #16 and most recently amended with Governor and Council
approval on June 20, 2018, item #41.100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)

Revised

.  Amount

Community Action
Program Belknap
and Merrimack

Counties Inc.

Concord, NH

03302

177203-

8003

Belknap
and

Merrimack

Counties

$403,895 $74,852 $478,747

Community Action
Partnership of

Strafford County
Dover, NH 03820

177200-

B004 -

Rockingham
and Strafford

Counties

$373,895 $0 $373,895

Southern New

Hampshire
Services

Manchester, NH

03103

177198-

B006

Rockingham
County

$373,895 $0 $373,895

Southwestern

Community

Services Keene,

NH 03431

177511-

P001

Counties of:

Cheshire,
Sullivan,

Grafton,
Carroll and

Coos

$897,348 $0 $897,348
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The Front Door

Agency Nashua,
NH 03064

156244-

B001

Greater

Nashua Area
$598,232 $0 $598,232

The Way Home Inc.
Manchester, NH

03103

166673-

B009

Hillsborough
County

$373,895 $0 $373,895

Tri County
Community Action
Program, Inc.

Berlin, NH 03570

177195-

B009

Counties of:

Grafton,
Carroll and

Coos

$224,337 $0 $224,337

Total: $3,245,497 $74,852 $3,320,349

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING -
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
42309311' $598,232 $0 $598,232

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
42309315 $598,232 $0 $598,232

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
42309319 $703,011 $0 $703,011

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog
Svc 42309311

•

$673,011 $5,138 $678,149

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog
Svc 42309315

$0 $34,857 $34,857

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog
Svc TBD

$673,011 $34,857 $707,868

Total $3,245,497 $74,852 $3,320,349

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. As previously
stated, the original contract was approved by povernor and Council on June 29, 2016, Item #16.
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be lat>elled as sole source. As previously
stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 29, 2016; Item #16.
It was then subsequently arhended with Governor and Council approval on June 20, 2018, Item
#41.

The purpose of this request is to include additional funding, that was inadvertently not
included In the previous amendment, for the full time Data Analyst position with the Community
Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc. The United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) requires that the Homeless Management Information System
(HMIS) have an identified lead agency and Data Analyst, who is responsible for providing HMIS
support within the Department. This position serves to analyze and formulate procedures and
controls In order to increase the efficiency of the HMIS and provide technical assistance needed
for state and federal reporting requirements. This analyst provides this data for all statewide
services for individuals who experience homelessness.

The population served are individuals and or families who are homeless and/or are at risk
of becoming homeless. Approximately 1,000 individuals will be served from May 20, 2020 to
June 30, 2021.

These vendors assist Individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless to
achieve housing stability through housing stability case management sen/ices which address
homeless prevention, rapid re-housing and housing relocation, and stabilization services.
Services may include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last
month's rent, utility deposits and payments, as well as moving costs. Housing stability case
management services include assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of
Individualized services to facilitate housing stability for a participant and or household currently
residing in permanent housing, or to assist a participant and or household In overcoming
immediate barriers to obtaining housing.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using the following performance
measures:

•  Reduce the length of time program participants spend homeless. For a program to
meet this performance benchmark, households served by the program should
move into permanent housing in an average of 30 days or less.

■  • Permanent housing success rates. For a program to meet this performance
benchmark, at least 80 percent of households that exit a rapid re-housing program
should exit to permanent housing.

•  Returns to Homelessness. For a program to meet this performance benchmark, at
least 85 percent of households that exit a rapid re-housing program to permanent
housing should not become homeless again within a year.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
would not be able to provide the technical assistance needed to meet federal and state reporting
requirements, which could result in the loss of federal funds.

Area served: Statewide
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Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. CFDA #14.231. FAIN #E18DC3300001

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

AnnH.Xandry
Associate Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter refen-ed to as
"Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Beiknap
and Menimack Counties inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor^), a non-profit corporation with a
place of business at 2 industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH 03302-1016.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2016 (Item #16). as amended on June 20. 2018, (Item #41). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph #4, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Fonn P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$478,747

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting»Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan 0. White, Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.5
by replacing in Its entirety v\rith Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of
Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.5, to read:

2.8.5 Define detailed business information and application data requirements in coordination with
assigned state agency staff, and In conjunction with approved data-base model and
analysis.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.7
by replacing in Its entirety with Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of
Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.7, to read:

2.8.7 Collatwrate with the NH HMiS representatives, state HMiS Contract Manager, and BHHS
Administrator to identify business objectives to meet state HMiS needs.

Community Action Program Beiknap and
Menimack County Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-A02 Page 1 of4 Datecj)



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsection 2.8, by adding Exhibit
A. Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsection 2.8, Paragraph
2.8.11, to read:

2.8.11 Conduct research and anaiysis of data and trends reiated to housing and homeiessness.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Amendment #1, Section A.2.6
Amount, by repiacing in its entirety with Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
Amendment #2, Section A.2.6 Amount, to read:

$74,779 SPY 2017

$74,779 SPY 2018

$104,779 SPY 2019

$114,774 SPY 2020

£109.636 SPY 2021

$478,747 Total

8. Modify Exhibit B-2 Budget - Amendment #1 by deleting it in its entirety and repiacing it with Exhibit
8-2 Budget - Amendment #2, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

9. Modify Exhibit B-3 Budget - Amendment #1 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing It with Exhibit
B-3 Budget - Amendment #2, attached hereto and Incorporated herein.

Community Action Program Belknap and
Merrimack County Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01-A02 Page2of4 Date



New Hampshfre Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Dat^ I Name: ChristlneU-.lMntaniello
Title: Director

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP AND
MERRIMACK COUNTIES INC.

S^OJUAJL
Date l^e:Oeao'^-Cr i

Tiue: £y c

Ou

Community Action Progfam Belknap and
Merrinwck County Inc. Amendment #2

ir-DHHS-OC8CS-eHHS-01-A02 Pago 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

Date

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Naif»e:\
Titles^

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Program Beiknap and
Morrimacfc County inc. Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Departmsnt of Health and Human Services
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1^ William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is aNew Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of
State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0004877148

Op

Ba.

a •0

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

[, Robert Krieeer . Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Meirimack Counties.
Inc. (hereinaRer the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (I) I am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have
authorized, on 03/12^020 such authority to be in force and effect until 6/30/2021 ^

(contract termination date)
(see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the (Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director
Michael Tabory, Deputy Director

Steven E. Gregoire, Budget Analyst
Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of tlie date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Sectary of the corporation
this 27hh day of March ■ 20 20 .

Secretary-Clerk

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF MERRJMACK

On this 27th day of March .20 20 . before me, Kathy L. Howard the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Robert Krieger who acknowledged himself to be the

Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation

and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

"l^atihy ^/^dward^ Notary'^Tuti^
Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

kathy L, HOWARD Nottfy PiMo. NH
Commission Expiration Date: •^Commttrton Ootober 17.2023



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIM ACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Budget Analyst, Chief Accountant,
President, Vice-President(s). or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the
State of New Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal
#269 and #272 Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to. the
following:

• Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
• Department ofEducation forNutrition programs
- Department of Health and Human Services

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
Division of Public Health Services for public health programs

Department of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs
•  Department ofTransportation-Public Transportation Bureau for transportation programs
•  Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs

• Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
• Department ofNatural and Cultural Resources
• New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSl) for Low Income Energy Assistance,

Weatherization, SEAS and Block Grant programs
• New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
• New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority*
• New Hampshire Secretary of State
• U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Services
• U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
• U.S. Department oftheTreasury -Internal Revenue Service
•  and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on March 12, 2020, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

•'^3/27/2020 ____
.  " Date Robert Kfleger

Secretary/Clerk

SEAL
Agency Coq>ortie Rctolution 3/2020



AC^^h? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE {MM®ormYi

04/01/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If th® cortiflcala holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
thu rprtifiratft does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAL/Cro&s Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAMfc^^ Karen Shaughnessy
(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

vv>dIi«h, k8hauflhnes8y®cfDs^ency,com
INSURERIS) AFFOROI.VO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER*: PhfladelphlalnsCo

iNsuweo

Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack Counties Ina

P.O.Box tote

iNsiiRFR B • Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURERC: Fedemi lnsCo 20201

INSURER 0 :

INSURERE:

Tnsir
UTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTHO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWrmSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS .
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUSJECTTO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONSANO CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TYPe OF INSURANCE RTPliWI POUCY NUUeER

X COMMERCIAL OENERAL LUBIUTY

OCCURCLAIMS-MAOE

OENXAOOREOATe LIMIT APPLIES PEW:

rn LOCX POLICY

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UAfilUTV

ANYAUIOX

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMQRELLA UAB

excess uad

DEO

SCHEOULCD
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NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLANS-MADE

X REteNTION t
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS- LIABUTY

ANY PROPR<ETORrf»ARTNER«XeCUT1VE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MtndMorv ki NH)
!(yai, dcioltM undvr
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATION 8 b«low

s

Directors & OfTiccrs Uablilty

PHPK2041343

PHPK2041342

PHUBe94602

HCHS202000000185 (3a.) NH

82471794

IMMIOO/YYYYI

10/01/2019

10/01/2019

tORJI/2019

02rt)1/2020

04/01/2020

IMMIOO/VYYYI

10/01/2020

10/01/2020

10AD1/2020

02/01/2021

04/01/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAOSTONENTeO
PREMISES fG« octurfnol

MEO EXP (Any on* Pbr«eo>
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERINQ COMMUNITIES SINCE I9SS

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of
poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through

planning and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other
assistance (including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the
organization of a range of ser\'ices related to the needs of low-income families and
individuals, so that these services may have a measurable and potentially major
impact on the causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to
achieve self-sufficiency; the maximum participation of residents of the low-income
communities and members of the groups served to empower such residents and
members to respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities;
and to secure a more active role in the provision of services for private, religious,

charitable, and neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and
business, labor, and professional groups, who are able to influence the quantity and
quality of opportunities and services for the poor.

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as pan of the Agency Bylaws.)
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Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. STR.\m\M
Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 28, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the years then
ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statenients that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose, of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion '

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Repbrtind Required by Government Auditing Standards ^

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 16, 2020, on our consideration of Community Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Beiknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord. New Hampshire
January 16, 2020



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK CQUNTIEiS. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019

S  1.411,762
2.321,041

22,800
52,632
102.522

^910,757

4,749,673
5,979.320

10,728,993

6.330.580

4.398.413

139.441

139,441'

183,269

1.069,165
1,066,748
998,332

3,317,514

781.385

4.098,899

3,842,297
507,415

4,349,712

2018

$  1.751,685
2.993,405

26,567

88,287
98.753.

4.958.697

4,634,220
6,227,722

10.861.942

6.936.806

3,925.134

139,441

139,441

$ 8,448.611 $ 9^021272

$  172,745

1,443,697

1,056,676
1,187.333

3.860,451

962,781

4,823,232

3,497,187
702.853

4.200.040

$ 8,448,611 $ 9.023.272

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

Without Donor With Donor 2019

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards $  19,205,554 $ $  19.205.554

Other funds 4.706.408 169,246 4,875,654
In-kind 829,464 829,464

United Way 18,227. - 18,227

Total revenues and other support 24,759,653 169,246 24,928.899

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 364,684 (364,684) •

Total 25,124.337 (195.438) 24.928,899

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 8,905,642 8,905,642

Payroll taxes and benefits 2,428,774 - 2,428,774

Travel 324,491 - 324,491

Occupancy 1,310,477 - 1,310,477

Program services 8,941,429 - 8.941,429

Other costs 1,707,999 - 1,707,999

Depreciation 330,491 - 330,491

In-kind 829,924 - 829,924

Total expenses 24,779,227 ♦ 24.779.227

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 345,110 (195,438) 149,672

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.497,187 702,853 4.200,040

NEt ASSETS. END OF YEAR $  3,842,297 $  507,415 $  4,349,712

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTtES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions

2018

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards , $  17,935,847 $ $  17,935,847

Other funds 1.538,501 2,870.131 4.408,632
In-kind 1.147,978 . 1,147,976

United Way 30,517 - 30,517.

Total revenues and other support 20,652,843 2,870,131 23,522,974

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 2,811.389 (2.811.389) •••

Total 23,464,232 58,742 23,522,974

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 8,295,198 - 8,295,198
Payroll taxes and benefits 2,054,965 - 2,054,965

Travel 281,239 - 281,239

Occupancy 1,222,773 - 1,222,773
Program services 7,979,371 - 7,979,371
Other costs 1,636,269 - 1.636,269
Depreciation 236,706 - 236,706

In-kind 1,147.978 - 1.147,978

Total expenses 22,854.499 22,854,499

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 609,733 58,742 668,475

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,887,454 644,111.. 3,531,565

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  3,497,187 $  702.853 $  4,200,040

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES: INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Decrease (increase) in current assets;

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Decrease (Increase) in current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH Flows FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property
Investment in partnership

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

2019 2018

$  149,672 $ 668,475

330,491 236,706"

672,364 (831,433)

3,767 (5,037)

35,655 6,028

(374,532) 595.990

10,072 37,250
(189,001) 28,002

638.488 735,981

(803,770) (523.729)
(3.769) (13.528)

(807.539)

(170,872)

(170,872)

(339,923)

1,751.685

$  1,411.702

(537.257)

(179.383)

(179.383)

19.341

1.732.344

1.751.685

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION;

Cash paid during the year for interest 63.133 73,582

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

Program Management

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program Services
Other costs:

Accour^ting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

8,682,073
2,320,432

323,333

1,293,439
8,941,429

19,554

284,548
53,134

2,208
45,786

22,840

46,478
143,136

9,891

214,214

37,562

701,232
330,491
829.924

223,569
108,342

1,158
17,038

57,892

3,520

3,732

27,848
18,655
6,760

9,093

1,304

612

Total

8,905,642
2,428.774
324.491

1.310,477
8,941,429

57,892
23,074

284,548

53,134
2,208

49,518

50,688
63,133
149,896
18,984

214,214

38,866
701,844
330,491
829,924

$  24,301,704 5 477,523. $ 24,779,227

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

Proaram ' Manaaement Total

Salaries and wages $  8.026.291 S 288,907 $ 8,295,198
Payroll taxes and benefits 1.948,839 106,126 2,054,965

Travel 279,829 1.410 281,239

Occupancy 1.107.004 115,769 1,222,773
Program Services 7.979.371 • 7,979.371

Other costs:

Accounting fees 24.915 27,549 52.464

Legal fees 5,137 - 5,137

Supplies 236,553 26,718 263,271

Postage and shipping 49,153 1,052 50,205

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,680 - 1,680

Printing and publications 3,643 27,649 31,292

Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,730 9,544 23,274

Interest 68,274 5,308 73,582

Insurance 123.457 35,257 158,714

Membership fees 19,045 8,668 27,713

Utility and maintenance 185,882 64,390 250.272

Computer services 21,517 17,179 38,696

Other 645,081 14,888 659,969

Depreciation 231,959 4,747 236,706
In-kind 1,147,978 - 1.147,978

Total functional expenses $ 22.119.338 S 735.161 $ 22,854,499

See Notes to Financial Statements
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BELKNAP - MERRItVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties. Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profil Entities (Topic - 958) -
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses
the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in
Information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in
the type of Information provided about expenses and investment return. The
Organization has presented these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the Organization to report
Information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-Imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include^ net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, wheretjy the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.



Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $507,415 and $702,853 at
February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New

Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2015.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its information returns for the years (2016 through 2019), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or. if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted, accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
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create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations I Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services and.supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met. This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the Organization might
incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received $829,924 and
$1.147,978 in donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended February 28,
2019 and 2018, respectively, as follows:

The Organization receives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $35,519 and $292,141 for the years ended February 28,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Organization also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $793,945 and
$846,237 for the years ended February 28,i2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Agency pays below^market rent for the use of certain facilities. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting pririciples, the difference between amounts paid for the
use of the facilities aiid the fair market value of the rerital space has been recorded as
an in.-kihd dphatlon and as an in-kind expense in the accompanying financial
staterhehts. The-estimated fair value of the dohation was determined to be $9;600 for
the year ■ended February 28, 2018. There was no. donation for the year ended February
28,2019.

Advertising
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28. 2019 and 2018 totaled $54,461 and $32,655,
respectively.

Inventorv
Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the flrst-in, first-out method.

Functidhal AHocatioh of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited. Expenses are charged
to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or estimated usage based on
time spent on each program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation
Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

11



2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 28, 2019
and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,411,762 $ 1,75.1.685
Accounts receivable 2,321,041 2,993.405
Investments 102.522 98,753
Line of credit available 200.000 200.000

Total financial assets 4.035.325 5.043.843

Less amounts not available to be used within

one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions 507,415 702,853
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met In less than a year ' ^ ^

Amounts not available within one year 507.415 702.853

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 3.527.910 $ 4.340.990

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
. expenses which approximates $3,880,000 and $3,530,000 respectively, at February 28,
2019 and 2018.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts

was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2019 and 2018. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$998,332 and $1,187,333 as of February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan Is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2019 and 2018
totaled $184,961 and $202,725, respectively.

12



6. LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for Its community service programs are leased ̂
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $480,258 and $479,964, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2020 $ 468,715

2021 368.835
2022 104,206
2023 103,206

2024 103.206

Thereafter 972.603

Total S 2.120.771

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $377,163 and $369,827 at
February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable Interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (5,50% and 4.50% at February 28, 2019
and 2018, respectively) plus 1%. but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured
by all the Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at
February 28. 2019 and 2018.

.9. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

5.75% note payable to a financial institution In
monthly Installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. $ 649,372 $ 773,551
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3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly Installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 64,943 71,843

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located In Concord, Ne\w Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 250.339 290:132

Total 964,654 1,135,526

Less amounts due within one year 183.269 172.745

Long term portion S 781.385 S 962.781

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2019 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2020 $ 183,269
2021 194,445
2022 206,317

2023 218,926
2024 133.205

Thereafter 28.492

£  964.654

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Land $ 168,676 $ 168,676
Building and improvements 4,580,996 4,465,544
Equipment and vehicles 5.979.321 6.227.722

10,728,993 10,861,942

Less accumulated depreciation 6.330.580 6.936.808

Property and equipment, net $ 4.398.413 £ 3.925.134

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 was $330,491
and $236,706. respectively.
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11. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2019.

During the year ended February 28. 2018, the Corporation for National and Community
Service (CNCS) conducted a monitoring of its program and found that the Organization
was not in full compliance with the program requirements. As a result, CNCS
disallowed $37,000 of grant expenditures. The Organization returned the funds in full
during April 2018.

12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, approximately $12,000,000 (48%)
and $11,000,000 (47%), respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received
from the Department of Health and Human Services. The future scale and nature of the
Organization is dependent upon continued support from this department.

13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

NH Food Pantry Coalition
Senior Center

Elder Services

NH Rotary Food Challenge
Corhmon Pantry
Caring Fund
Agency - FAR
Agency Head Start
Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

663 $

137,743
200,912

5,068
5,534

11,811

6,342
137,967

1.375

S  507.415

663

127,746

390,089

5,068
5,912

14,272
14,746

140,979

3.378
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related Party Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at both February 28,
2019 and 2018.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation HUD Property
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation Property Development
Ozanam Place, Inc. Transitional Supportive

Services

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 28, 2019 and
2018 was $185,937 and $114,032, respectively and is included in accounts receivables.

15. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

16. FAIR VALUE OF.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program In certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $101,522 and $97,753 at February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be detennined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable Inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2019 and 2018, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Levell)

2019 2018

Beginning balance - mutual funds
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds
Purchases

$ 97,753

3,769
$ 84,225

9,528

4.000

Ending balance - mutual funds $  101.522 $ 97.753

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also has $1,000 invested in a Partnership, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February 28, 2019 and 2018.
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17. FISCAL AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following- community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be Issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events "through January 16, 2020, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See independent Auditors' Report)
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'-MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Av/ards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended.to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUIVilVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COiVIMODITIES AND VEHICLES
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization); which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2019 and
2018, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 16, 2020.

Internal Control Over.Financial Reportinci
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatemenl of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In Internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been Identified. We did Identify
a deficiency In Internal control, described In the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as Item 2019-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Corhpliahce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

.Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020
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ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Combliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2019.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Manaoement's.Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responslbilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable" to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Ooihldn on Each Maiior Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28,2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap,-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal-control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency In internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees. In the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in Internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In Internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020
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COMIViUNITY ACTION PRQGR/^M BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance v/ith Govemment Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major.Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Aging Cluster,93.044, 93.045 and 93.053, Social Services Block Grant
93.667, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Women. Infants and Children 10.557, U.S.
Department of Transportation, Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509. Enhariced
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2019-001

Condition: The financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of
fieldwprk understated net income by a material amount. This was primarily the result of
improper cut off due to revenue related to the fiscal year under audit being recorded to the
subsequent period.

Criteria: The Organization's internal control procedures should be structured so that
accounts are reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and a review is completed prior to
closing the financial records for the year.

Cause: The Organization lost staff and their accumulated knowledge of Fiscal
Department processes and procedures. This led to general ledger entries being posted late
or mis-posted.

Effect: Significant adjusting journal entries were proposed by the auditor to ensure
accurate revenue cut off for the period under audit. Additionally, the auditor proposed a
significant adjusting entry to reduce expenses as a result of workers' compensation
insurance expenses being over-accrued.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the Organization implement
procedures so that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management
on a monthly basis. Further, the auditors recommend that the financial closing process be
simplified and include a review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts.

Views of Responsible Officials: Staff turnover and short staffing resulted in the errors
leading to this finding. Agency Officials recognize the need to ensure the presence of
qualified staff for operational continuity. The Organization will implement procedures so
that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by manageitient on a rribnthly
basis. The. Director of Finance will also develop procedures to produce financial reports on
a periodic basis.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

27



e
ItlKNAT-MEUUMACKCOUKnU tNC

8

Effective March 2020

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECrORS

Dennis Martino, President Heather Brown

David Siff, Esq., Vice President Theresa M. Cromwell

Robert (Bob) Krieger, Secretary-Clerk Christine Averill

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer Ben Wilson, AAMS®

Sara A. Lewko Bruce Carri
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Roger Pitzer

Summary of Qualifications

Goal-driven and dedicated IT professional with over 20 years of Programming & Data Analysis. I am highly
effective in many different aspects of IT environments, and have a proven ability to learn & successfully develop
new skills in a very productive amount oflime, with emphasis on multi-tasking, communication, and problem
solving.

•  20 + years in the Credit, Direct Marketing, Direct Mail, & Retail industries
•  Excellent problem solving and analytical skills.
•. Excellent writing skills with ability to address technical & non-technical people.
•  Programming for the extraction, analysis, manipulation, and reformatting of many types of data.
•  Successful development and retention of vendor & client relationships.
•  Marketing & Market Analysis

Technical Proficiencies:

O/S Windows/Server, IBM 400
Languages/Tools SQL, DB2. COBOL, GIGS, EZtrieve, JCL, SAS, Croup l(Ceneralized Select, List

Convert), TSO/ISPF/SPF, Abend-AID, MS-Officc, File-AID, Visio, UltraEdii,
A.ssembler (l&T), MS-Basic(DOS), Essbase, Lotus Notes, Adobe Suite, XMPie/
VDP (QLINCO/Xerox), BOG Postal Soflware(java/G), Fusion Pro/VDP (java/G)
SQL Server 2008, SSIS

Training GOBOL, RPC, MS-Basic, A+ / Network (non cert), MS-OfTice, Adobe Suite

Professional Experience

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., Concord, NH June 2016-Currcm
Datfl Analv.st - obtain statistics from homeless service providers, statistical analysis, and report writing using ART
(Advanced Reporting Tool which is Business Objectives similar to Crystal Reports) for the State Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services (BHHS), as well as public, state and federal entities. Application programming
with Business Intelligence Report version 11.5 development and maintenance: gathering report requirements from
users; developing complex, production level reports; maintaining reports, including alterations and migrations, as
required; translate end user reporting requirements into technical design documents; and trace report performance
issues to root cause.

Gurnet Hill, Franconia, NH-Mark MiMarzio Fcb.2016 - June 2016
Contract - Marketing Analytics Support (3+ Month)

•  Update daily Marketing reports via SQL Server and Access Databases
.■ Create and maintain SQL driven Excel Marketing reports

< ■ Work with Marketing and Data Analysis Croup for iroubleshocling and reporting issues
Document all processes

■  Automate data feeds, and table updates for Marketing reports using SSIS
•  All Ad Hoc reporting

Mall Data Inc., Manchester, NH-Mike Sweeney Jan.2012-May.20l5
Kirkwood Direct, Wilmington, MA- Steve Kuczwara Oct.2009- Dec.2011
Dalamann, Inc., Wilder, VT-Johii Nadeau Fcb,2006 - Mar.2008



t

List & Digital Print Processing Specialist / Data Analyst / Programmer - Direct Mail

■  Gather, analyze, manipulate, test & monitor Customer Supplied, In-House Customer DB, and List
Acquisition data in support of clients developing & maintaining marketing and mail campaigns.

■  Programming in BCC Postal Software, SQL, MS-Access, COBOL, Group!, MS-Basic (data).
■  Programming in InDesign/XMPic(QLINGO) VDP, and Adobe PDF/Fusion Pro VDP (print).
•  Ensure Quality Control testing & processing using SQL, MS-Access, MS-Excel advanced reporting

abilities, and internal standard QC & testing protocols.
•  Digital Color & B/W Production Printing - Xerox (Freeflow), Canon. Kodak.

Thermadyne, Inc., West Lebanon, NH- Greg Balch June 2008- Nov 2008
Data Analyst - Short Term Contract

■  Extract large amounts of data from in-house Essbase & Lotus Notes databases, using MS-Access.
Merge & Analyze extracted data to create custom reports, graphs &. spreadsheets on several different
levels for Quality Assurance Management to use as tools for tracking and correcting quality issues.

Project 4, SalcnUTilton, NH Oct. 2007- Current
Vintage Diversions, Tilton/Meredith, NH Sept. 2002-0ci.2007
Pitzwick's Antiques, CA, NH June.]993-Sepi.2002

Entrepreneurial-Operations & Marketing Manager - Retail

State of NH, Dept of Administrative Services, Financial Data Mgmt July.200l-Apr,2002
Systems Development Specialist IV

TRW/Expcrian, Orange/Costa Mesa, OA
Data Quality Specialist SR OcL 1999-Junc200l
I&T Analyst Aug. 1998 - Oct 1999
Project Analyst SR Jan. 1992-Aug. 1998
National DB Analyst SR 1990-Jan. 1992

•  Provide Technical & Business Cofisulialion regarding information content within Expcrian'.s Consumer
Credit daiabasc.

■  Support Production by identifying problems and/or potential problems within Die Credit database. DB2,
SAS, JCL, EZTreivc, Microsoll Products

■  Maintain integrity and quality ofCrcdit database with DB2 Queries, internal Validation software, llc.scarch,
and DBl database cleanup.

•  Support New Product Concepts and Scheduled Software Releases by performing Dainhasc Analy.sis,
Research and Cleanup as required. TSO/iSPF/SPF, Abend-AfD, File-AID, Visio, DB2, EZirieve, JCl.,,
SAS, Group 1 (Generalized Select, List Convert).

■  Provide Statistical Analysis & Support to internal &. external clients in the areas of Legal Compliance,
Fraud, Sales, Marketing & Business Information Services. SAS, JCL, EZTrcivc.

•  Responsible for the review, planning, te.silng and approval of departmental software changes, additions, and
updates, with le.st plans, unit, system, sub-system and regression testing. Assembler, TSO/ISPF/SPF,
Abend-AID, Fitc-AID, Visio, 062, COBOL, CICS, EZtrieve, JCL, SAS, Group l(Generalizcd Select,
List Convert).

■  Extensive Data manipulation and validation for the inclusion of clients mail campaigns, and database
analysis to include both client's customers, and client prospective customers. TSO/ISPF/SPF, Abend-
AiD, File-AID, Visio, DB2, COBOL, CICS, F.Ztricve, JCI., SAS, Croup ̂ Generalized Select,
List Convert).
Interaciion with technical & non-technical Sales, Clients, data centers, Credit Scoring group, and Product
Marketing to ensure client satisfaction.

■  Regular communications & interaction with both technical and non-icchnical personnel.
•  Responsible for formal training & documentation of detailed processes within the Client Services

environment.

■  All tasks required use of various software & programming languages such as, but not limited to,
Assfmblcr, TSO/ISPF/SPF, Abcnd-AID, Filc-AID, Visio, DB2, COBOL, CICS, EZlricvc, JCL, SAS,
Group IfGcnerali'/cd Select, List Conveit).



Credit Data Southwest, Phoenix, AZ

Data Processer/Programmer Oct.1989 — Mar. 1990

•  Responsible for analyzing data from National and Regional Financial Institutions, Credit Agencies and
Bureaus to ensure validity & confonmit>' with TRW Credit Dau reporting requirements. TSO/ISPF/SPF,
Abcnd-AID, File-AID, Visio, CICS, EZtricvc, JCL, Group l(Generalizcd Select, List Convert),

Education & Credentials
Graduate.

Espanola Valley High - 1978 - Espanola, NM
Associates Degree - Computer Science.
Mountain States Technical Institute - 1989 - Phoenix, AZ
-RFC, COBOL, Technical Writing.

Certificate of Achievements.
BSTI - 2009 - MancHester, NH
-A+ Certification Training, Adobe Suite, MS-Access.



Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
FY 2020

KEY PERSONNEL

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Roger Pitzer Data Analyst 556,238 39.86% $ 17,579.00



Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
FY 2021

KEY PERSONNEL

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Roger Pitzer Data Analyst $56,238 34.75% $ 19,536.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

HVMAN SERVICES AND BEHAVORIAJ. HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9546 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9546

Fnx: 603-271-4232 TDD Access: 1-800-735-29(54

www.dhhs.nh.gov

ApriI13, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Horrieless and Housing
Services, to exercise renewal options to existing agreements and enter into one (1) sole source
contract with the vendors identified below, for the provision of Emergency Solutions Grant Services by
increasing the price limitation to by $2,049,033 from $1,196,464 to $3,245,497 and by extending the
completion date of some contracts from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. The Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreements on
June 29, 2016 (item #16). 100% Federal Funding

Vendor
Vendor

Number
Location

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

G8iC Approval

Community Action
Program Gelknap
and Merrimack

Counties Inc.

177203-

B003

2 Industrial Park

Drive

Coricord, NH
03302

5149,558 $254,337 $403,895 O:06/29/16#16

Community Action
Program of Strafford

177200-

8004

642 Centra)

Avenue, Dover,
NH 03820

5149,558 $224,337 $373,895 0:06/29/16 #16

Southern New

Hampshire Services
177198-

8006 •

40 Pine Street

Manchester, NH

03103

5149.558 $224,337 $373,895 0: 06/29/16#16

Southwestern

Community Services
177511-

P001

63 Community
Way, Keene NH

03431

$448,674 $448,674 $897,348 0:06/29/16 #16

The Front Door

Agency
156244-

8001

7 Concord Street

Nashua. NH
03064

$149,558 $448,674 $598,232 0: 06/29/16 #16

The Way Home Inc.
166673-

8009

214 Spruce
Street

Manchester, NH
03103

$149,558 $224,337 $373,895 0: 06/29/16 #16

Tri County
Community Action
Program, Inc.

177195-

8009

30 Exchange
Street

Berlin, NH
03570

$0 $224,337 $224,337 New Sole Source

Totals: 51.196.464 S2.049.033 $3,245,497



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

Funds to support this request are available in the following account In State Fiscal Year 2019
and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021, upon appropriation of continued
funding with the ability to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office
without further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS S HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Amount

2017
102-

500731

Contracts for

Pfoqram Sen/ices
$598,232 $0.00 $598,232

2018
102-'

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
$598,232 $0.00 $598,232

2019-
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
$0.00 $703,011 $703,011

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
$0.00 $673,011 $673,011

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
$0.00 $673,011 $673,011

Total: $1,196,464 $2,049,033 $3,245,497

EXPLANATION

The request to enter into contract with Tri County is sole source because an increase In
administrative staffing and internal organizational structure has allowed for Tri-County to more
efficiently meet the needs of individuals and or families who are homeless and or at risk of becoming
homeless. Previously Southwestern Community Services had funding to serve the North Country
population and had formal agreements with Tri-County CAP to administer funds for the Northern region
of the state. Funds have been moved from Southwestern Community Services and moved into the Tri
County CAP sole source contract to allow Bureau of Housing Supports to contract directly withTri-
County CAP to serve the Northern population. No other agency at this time is able to serve the
homeless population in the northern region with the knowledge and resources that Tri-County CAP
possesses.

Exhibit C-1 of the Tri County contract includes language that reserves the Department's right to
extend contract services for up to three (3) years contingent upon the vendor providing satisfactory
services, availability of continued funding and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

The purpose of this request is for the continuation of Emergency Solutions Grant Program
services to individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Services include
interventions that have a direct and positive impact on individuals and families. The services provided
through these contract agreements prevent individuals, and families from becoming homeless and
assist.lndividuals who are currently homeless to regain housing.

These vendors assist individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless achieve
housing stability through Housing Stability Case Management services which address the following
program components:



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

•  Homelessness Prevention.

•  Rapid Re-Housing.
•  , Housing Relocation.
•  Stabilization Services.

Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Relocation and Stabilization services may
include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last month's rent, utility
deposits and payments, as well as moving costs. Housing stability case management services include
assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized services to facilitate
housing stability for a participant/household currently residing in permanent housing, or to assist a
participant/household in overcoming immediate barriers to obtaining housing.

Vendors will refer eligible individuals to services, which may include but are not limited to:

•  Budgeting classes.
•  Job search assistance.

•  Interview skills training.

•  Resurhe writing classes.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any-payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
state legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Year 2020-2021 biennia.

All contracts being renewed include renewal language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, paragraph 4 for up to three (3) years contingent upon satisfactory services, continued
funding and approval from the Governor and Executive Council.

The Department supports the request to renew services as the vendors have provided services
that have met federal and state statutory regulations to provide services to homeless and at risk
individuals in accordance to Emergency Solutions Grant provisions.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals and or,
households may not receive interventions that have a direct and positive impact on housing stability
which may increase the risk of homelessness or unsafe living arrangements. Without such services
individuals may not receive rental assistance, utility payments and case management assistance in
order to overcome immediate barriers to obtaining housing. Additionally without the Housing Relocation
and Stabilization services individuals may not have the opportunity to remain stably housed though
effective case management. Individuals may not have referrals to life skill training such as budgeting
and resume writing classes, job search assistance and inten/lew skills training.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA# 14.231, FAIN E17DC330001

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.



His Exceliency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Respectfully submitted,

Christine Tappari
Associate Commissioner

Approved by:
(o ̂  Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The DepoTtnxenL of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join conimunilies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve healtlx and independence-



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Hiealth and Humari Services

Amendment #1 to the Emergency Solutions Grant Contract

This 1'* Amendment to the Emergency Solutions Grant Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") dated this 22"*" day of February 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties Inc., (hereinafter referred to as 'Ihe
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Coricord, NH
03302-1016.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on June 29, 2016 (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract;, and

WHEREAS, pursuant.to.Form P-37 General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General.Provisions, Paragraph 4 of the agreement the parties may amend and renew the agreement for
up to three (3) years upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise the renewal options available and increase the price limitation
at level funding; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provision, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$403,895.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

(603) 271-9330.

5. Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 1, Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection 1.4, to
read:

1.4 For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall be identified as a Subreciplent in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, to read:

2.8 The Contactor shall ensure staffing during State Fiscal Year 2019 includes one (1) full
time Data Analyst to analyze and formulate procedures and controls in order to increase
the efficiency of the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and related
business operations. The Contractor shall ensure Data Analyst duties include, but are
not limited to:

Community Action Program Belknap arxl Merrimack Counties Inc.
Amendnient #1

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-01 Page 1 of 5



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emdrgency Solutions Grant Program Contract

• 2.8.1 Gathering statistics from homeless service providers for the purpose of analyzing'
and developing reports for the Department, as well as public and federal entities

2.8.2 Performing all duties in association with HMIS contract manager and
Departmental administrator to prioritize projects and complete business
objectives.

2.8.3 Participating in meetings/discussions/committees with key agencies, providers
and community organizations.

2.8.4 Preparing answers to public information Inquiries relative to homeless statistics.

2.8.5 Defining detailed business information and application data requirements in
coordination with assigned Department staff.

2.8.6 Analyzing system errors and problems, recommend solutions, and provide
technical assistance as necessary to end users.

2.8.7 Collaborating with HMIS representatives on the coordination and implementation
of system components, Including screen forms and reports.

2.8.8 Researching functional specifications for system changes, including but not limited
resource estimates.

2.8.9 Reviewing and analyzing HMIS statistical data. Including data quality to ensure
reports are accurate and timely.

2.8.10 Collaborating with Department staff and statevyide homeless service providers on
data analysis, report production and data quality issues.

7. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Preamble, Emergency Solutions Grant,
to read:

A. Preamble - Emergency Solutions Grant

A.I. The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A-
Emergency Solutions Grant.

A.2. This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds
made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

A.2.1. NH General Fund: Not Applicable

A.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%'

A.2.3. CFDA# 14.231

A.2.4. U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

A.2.5 Emergency Solutions Grant

Community AcUon Program Belknap and MerrimacK Counties Inc.
Amendment #1

17-DHHS-DCBCS-eHHS-01 Page 2 of 5



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

A.2.6 Amount: $74,779 SPY 2017

$74,779 SFY2018

$104,779 SPY 2019

$74,779 SPY 2020

$74.779 SPY 2021

$403,896 Total

0. Add Exhibit B-1, Budget - Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit B-2, Budget-Amendment#!

10. Add Exhibit B-3, Budget-Amendment#!

11. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrlmack Counties Inc.
Amendment #1

17-DHHS-DCBCS-BHHS-Ot Page 3 of 5



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

^ - IS-'J9
Date

State of New Hampshire
Dej»artment of heaitiLand Human Servicesnt of HeaittLand Huma

r ortnonLChristine Tappam
Associate Commissioner

5/02/2018

Community Action Program of Belknap/Merrimack

Date

Ackno^vledgement;
State of New Hampshire . County of Memmack

L
ITLE

Jeanne Agri
Executive Director

on 5/02/2018 , before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person Identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed .
above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the capacity Indicated above..-
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

oward, Notary Public
Name end Notary or Justice of the Peace

Notny ftibbe, New HSopdare
^My Comminiira fiqnres Oeo^ 2018

Community.Action Program Belknap and MerrimacK Counties Inc.
Amendment #1

17-DHHS-OCBCS.8HHS-01 Page /f of 5



NH Department of Health & Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE AJCDRNEY GENERAL

Date

nt

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councii of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: " (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Program Belknap and Menimack Counties Inc.
Amendment #1
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BMdcr/Prosnm.Nifne: Commtmtty AcOen Program Mknsp-MenlmMk CountiM Ine

Budget Roquitt for: Emeniancy Soliaions Gnnt

Budget Period: 7Hr201S«30ao20

Tote! PregfimCoet Contnctor.Stura'/.MsicJi Funded by.0HH9 centfect
Direct tndlreet Tot» Direct Indirect Total Dbect btdiroet Total

unekem tneremental Fixed tncremenut Fixed Incremocui FUed
1. Toai Sewv/WaoCT 1S.20S.00 1.000.00 16.205.00 1.00000 1.000.00 15.205.00 15.205.00

6.769.002. Emotoree Benefits

5. Ccnsuttsnts
25a00 9.019.00 6.769.00 6.769.00

4. Eouipmerc

Rental

Reoalr and M^enence
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S. Stfpcflea:
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19,440X0
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Indirect As A Percent of Direct 1.7*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

^ Exhibit .K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means ail confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of sen/ice, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardyvare.
firmware, or software-characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2016 Exhibit K Contractor lnHlall~^ri
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) wili be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which is jinked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy, of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHH has the same meaning as" provided in the
.  definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that. Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor I nltJaIs^t_£_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

.1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been, evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transrhit Confidential Data via cert//?ed ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Conficlentiai Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Last update (M.04.2016 Exhibit K Conlractorlnitial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Ihformation Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
stnjcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders arxJ sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidentiat Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices.,If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, alt
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITtON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor \mII only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in v^atever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can .impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of pr'otecting Department confidentiail information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and. hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported arid hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection. -

6. The Cbntractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, ehriergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure.wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certlficiatlon to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also knowri as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor • will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. Lasl update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS liiformation Security Requirements

.  3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a miriimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreerrients as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and .the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, Including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS

. Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doitA/endor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that'connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if enervated and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor InitialsOcL
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential,Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in ail other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer. Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; *

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.hh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHh;iSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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Jcffirey A. Meyers
Commissioofli

Morilee Nihon, M.B.A.
Deputy CoxnmissioQcr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

•  ■ OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

BUREAU OF HOMELESSAND HOUSING SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
■ 603-271-919G . 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196

fax: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 . ww.dhhs.nh.gov

Approved

TT(tem

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

-  . • - - - requested ACTION •

Authorize-the Department of Health' and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and
Housing. Services, to ehter iritd agreements With the veridofs listed below for the provision of
Emergency Solutions Grant services in an' amount not to exceed $1,495,592, eff^ctiv'eJuly 1,
2016 pr.;Up6h Governor and Execirtive Council approyai, \vhichever is later th'rpugh June 30,
2018. loo®?® Federal Funds.

Vendor Vendor

Number

Address
'  y

Ambuht
A  • .

■.Gprhfhuriity/Actipn.Partnership of
Belk'napand-Merrimack County

177203-B003 2 IndustrlarPark'.Drive ; •
Gpncofd, .NH 03302 ■

$149,5.58

CqmrhCinity A'ctlbn Program of.
;Straffo.rdL6ountyj:v.-..::c::.^

17720P-B004 642 Centfal Ayenue
.■Doyery.NH.'.6.382pl'. -

$'149j558.

Eastfe.hSe^l^filfJew Hampshire 177204-B005 '555 AUburh Street
Manchesier. NH 93103

$149",55;8-

Harbor Ho'mes, Inc. 155358-B001 45 High, Street;' , '
"Nbs'hua, NH 0306.0

$149;57p

Southern New Hampshire Services 1771.98-B:006 .40'Pine Street '
Manchester, .NH. ,03103

$149,558

Sputhwestern Commtinity Services 177511-P001 63, C.orhmuhity AA'ay
Kbene,* NH;"

$446,674'

The Front Door Agency • 156244-B001 7 Concord Street '
Nashua. NH-'03064 ■

$149,558

The Way Home, Inc. 166673-B009 214.SpruCe Street
Manchester, NH,03103

$149,558

N  . .. Total: $1,495,592

■  Funds to support this request are availably in the foUowirig accounts in State Fiscal Year
2017 and ;anticip"ated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018, upon the .availability and
continued appropriation of funds, in the future operating" budget, .with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget 'Office wjthput Governor arid
Executive Council approval, if needed, and justified. • "
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Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
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05-95^2-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAMS

Fiscal Year Class Title Amount

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs, $747,796
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs. $747,796

Total: $1,495,592

EXPLANATION

The .pOrpose" of these ..agreements is to provide Emergency Solutions Grant Program
services, whlcfi includes interventions that have a direct and positive impact on individuals and
families. The services provided-.through these contract agreements prevent Individuals arid
families, from becoming homeless or the sen/ices assist individuals who are currently homes to
regain housing.

These vendors assist individuals who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless

the fallowing program components:

o  Homelesshess Prevention.

0  Rapid Re-Housing.

0  Housing Relocation.

o  StabilizationServices.

Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-Housing, Housing Relocation and Stabilization
services may include the provision of rental assistance, payment of rental application fees, last,
month's rent, utility deposits and payments, as well as rhoving costs. Housing' stability case
management services indude assessing, arranging, coordinating, arid rtionitohng the delivery of
individualized services'to facilitate housing stability for a participant/househpld currently residing
in pe'rrnanent housing, or to assist a participant/household in overcoming immediate barriers to
obtaining housing.

Vendors will also ensure that eligible individuals have access to services, which may include
but are not limited to: • ,

0  Budgeting classes.

0  Job search assistance.

0  Intervievi/ skills training.

0  Resume writing classes.

In 2015 the Emergency Solutions Grant served 2,872 clients who were homeless or at
Imminent risk of homelessness. Of these 2,872 clients; 200 were veterans, 109 were chronically
homeless, and 667 were in families with children.
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A Request for Applications was posted to the Department's website from December 18,
2015 through February 5, 2016 to solicit vendors to provide Emergency Solutions Grant
services. The' Department received nine (9) applications in response to the Request for
Applications. A team of individuals with program specific knowledge and experience evaluated
the applications. One (1) application received by the Department did not comport with the
services requested In the Request for Applications. Three (3) applications were from one (1)
vendor. The Department selected seven (7) vendors with which to enter into eight (8)
agreements. The bid sheet is attached.

This contract contains language that reserves the Department's right to renew services
for up to three (3) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Individuals and
families may not receive the emergency housing assistance necessary to prevent or reduce the
risk of homelessness. . •

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds CFDA # 14.231

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Marilee Nihan, MBA
Deputy Commissioner

Approved by:

J^rey A. Meyer
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hum
Office of Business Operations
Contracts &.Procurement Unit

Surnjmary Scormg Sheet

an Services

Emergency Solutions Grant-(ESG)

~T RFA'Namc

# 17-DHHS.-DCBCS-BHHS-RFA-01

•  1.

2.

3.

A.

■  5.

- 6.

I

7.

i  8;

; io.

11.

Bidder Name

Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County

Community Action.Program, Beiknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.

I  . ' _

Easter-Seals NH, Inc.

Harbor Homes, Inc.

HeadreH Inc.

Southern NH Services

Sou^westem Community Services, Inc.

Cheshire
<  I

.Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Sullivaii

The Bridge House, Inc.

The Front Door Agency

the WayHome.

RFA Number . Reviewer-Names

• Melissa-Hatfield, BHHS Program

Specialist

'Pass/Fail

-Maximum -

Points

Ac

Po

tual-

nts

■165 153

165 153

165 151

165 .. 164

165 0

.  165 158

.185 154

.  165 ' 54

165 - 11.

165 61

165^ • 62

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Julie Lane, BHHS program
Specialist
Kristi Trudei, Program Planning & o
Review Specialist



NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program (17-clhhs-bhhs-rfa-01)

Notice: This agreement and oil of iCi attachnicnts shall become public upon submission co Goyernor and
Executive Coundi for approval. Any informoilon that is private, confidential or proprietary m.ust

be dearly Identified to the a gene/ and agreed to in wicing prior to signing the contract;

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION. •

1.1 State Agency Name

Department of Health and Human Services
1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street," Concord,- NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Program of
Beiknap/iyierrlrnack,County

1.4 Contractor Address '

PO Box 1016, 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord,
NH 03302-1016 " ' '

1.5 Contractor Phone Number

603-225-3295

1.6- Account Number:

05-95^2^23010-

7927-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date
June 30, 2018

1.8 , Price Limitation

$149,558' • ■

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D\ Bdrrin • "
1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

I.IT GontractoL&^afure 1.12 Name and Title ofContractor Sigriatbry

Ralph Littlefield,, Executive Director

1.13 Ackno'wfedeement: State bf NHr ' ' • County of " Merrimack

Oh ^tay^.l7,'20:lj6 , befpre the uhdbrsigneil officer, personally appeared the person Identified in block 1.12, or.sati^ctorily
proven to' be-tfi^ pers'oh wlipse name.js signed in block 1.11,:and.ackno'wlcdged that s/he execute^ ̂ is dbcumenl'in the capacity .
•iii'<iica^^in'\jlbcfc'I'!l2. ■ . ' " . . . • . =
I.lSi'l'"Si^ji.^'lofNdtaryPubltebr^ .

'  y. /• l^VTTiyLHOWi^NotHyPuW^NewW
' ̂Cot^inoQ Expires d^6bb/te,2Q18

1.13.2v J^^c.ancTTitla of J^otary orJusticc of the Peace
Kathy. L. Howard, Notary Public

1.14. Si^c Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State.Agency Signatory

1.16. Approval by, the N.H- Department of Admimstration, Division ofPcrsonAei Of,oppjicable)

By; - , Dircctpr, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney" General (Form,- Substance and Execution)

On:

On:

1.18 Approval by ihcGdvcnp^ and.Exec^tjve. Council

^

Page I of 4
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTllACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
through tlie agency identified in block 1.1 ("Stale"), engages
contractor identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBiT.A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3, EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwitlistanding any provision of this Agreement to the
.contrary, and'subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Cbuncif of the. State-of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and. all obligations of. the parlies
.hcrcunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
•and Executive Council appro,ve this Agreement as indicated m
block I'.is, iniicss no such approval.js required, in which case
the' A^cmc'nt 'shall become effective" ori the datb the
Agreement is.signed by the.Stale Agency, as showm in.block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor corhmenccs the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all-Services performed by the Contractor prior
to thi" 'Fffrrttvp rint-ft" shall Kff pftrFntrnfAjilihtL-SQlfi-rlRk-QLthe,

Contractor, and iriHhe event that this Agreement does not
become effective; -the State .shall hayc no- liabili.ty. to the
Contractor, Including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any CQSts incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwitltstanding any. provision of this Agreement to. the
contrary, all. obligations 6f..the State hereunder, including,
without lirhitation,' the contiquance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent-"upon "the availability and continue appropriation
of fundsj and in no, event; shall tlie State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction' or 'termination of
'appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become.ayailablcj ifever^ and shall
have the. right to terminate this Agr^mrat immediately upon
givinjg the Contractor notice of siich tcnnination. The State
"shall not be required to tr^sfer funds from any other account
to the Account Identifiedjh.blobk 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are-feduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/piacE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. •

5.1 The' contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are .idcutificd a'nd more particularly described in
EXHIBITB which is incorporated herein by reference.
'5.2 The payment by the Statc.cf-the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
perfonnance hereof,, and^shall be. the only-and the complete
cbmpensation to, -the" Contractor for the Services. The State
shall" have no liability to llie Contractor other than the contract

.price, . . • .

5.3 -The Slate reserves the rlgiit to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwitiistanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed tlic Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH-LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. . .

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, couiity or municipal autbqfitles
which hnposc any obligation or duty , upon the-Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
ia\\^. This may include the requirement to utilize aiudliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, inciuding yisioji, hearing and' speech',. ^
communicate with, receive information fî m,.and convey

comply 'with" all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor .shall
not discriminate gainst employees, or ^plican'ts for
employment because-of race, color, religion, .cr^, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and \idll take
affirmative action to'pfcvenl such discrimination..
6.3 If this Agreement is flind^ in any. part by-monies of the
United Stales,^ the Contractor shall- -comply'.With all-the
provisions of Executive Order No. ' 11246 "("^ual
Employment Opportuijity"), as ..supplemented •. by the
regulations of the Uhilcd States Depaitment of Labor'(4i"
G.F.R. Part 60), and with any "rules, regulations' an'd guidelines,
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implcrhent .these re'^lationS'. "The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State "or. United States .access to any of the
Contractor's books; re,cords and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and.conditions of dus A^ement:

7.pei^onnel!
7.1, The Contractor shall at its dym expert'provide, all
personnel necessary to perfcrm.the Services. The .Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in .the^ Services shall be
qualified to peiform the. Services,. and shall be properly
licensed and'otherwise authorized to do' so under all applicable'
laws.

7.2 Unless other\visc authorized in wiring, during the terra of
. this Agreement, and.for a period of six (6) raoriths after the
Cdmplctlon Date in block T?, the Conlraictor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subconhactdr or other pef^nj firm or
corporation 'wth whom It is eiigaged in a combined, effort to
perform lire Semces' to- hire,. apy- pyson '-wHo- -Js.- a- State
employee or ofTicial, -who- 'is.l materially- invdlvcd,-ih the-
procurement, ad'mioislration or performance of this

Document Version 05/15
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Agrecmenl. This provision shall survive icrmination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
ofany dispute concerning thcinterpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

8, EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
.Contractor shall constitute an event of default, hereunder
C'Event of Dcifauir):
8.1.1/feilure to.'perform the Ser\'ices satisfactorily or on

'  schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.13 failure to. perform any other covenant, terra or condition
of this Agrccmcnf;
8.2 Upon.the occurrence of any Event of Defeult, .the State
may take any one,.or more,,or all, of the folloi^ng actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice' specifying ihe.Event
of Default and 'requiring it to be. remedied within, in the

• absence^ of .a greater or lesser specification of. time, thirty (30)-
days from the date.of the notice; and if the,Event of Default is
: not--timely remedied,.terminate this Agreement, effective two
.(2) days.after giving the .Contractor notice of termination;
,8.i.2.gi.ve,thc Contractor a wrillenmotice specifying the Event.
of.Defrult and'susp.cQding'>a|i payments to be'made, under this
Agreemeht; and ordering that; the porllop of the coritract price
which, jvpuld ot.bcrwisc .accrue, to the Contractor, during, the-

,  period the date:Of such 'nodce'until such time as the State
. .dcteifmmes tbat the Cpntractor has cur^ tbc. Event of Defeult
shall never be paid to the Contractor, , .
•8.2.3 set off against any other, obligations the .State may owe to
'  the. C6htra.ctor.^y,.damages "the State suffers, by reawn.of any

Event.of Dcfauit; an.^or
8.2.4, treat the A^eement;,^-breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.
•  • ■ -V ....

P.DATAyACCE^/fcoNTroENTIALrry/
prkerVatioiv.
9.1 As used in jthis.Agrecmcnt," the word "data" shall mean all
inforih.atibn and-ihings 'developed or obtained during the
performance of; or. acquired or developed by reason of, this

- Agredraeht, including, but not-limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae,, surveys, maps, charts, sound.recordings, video
recordings, pictorial 'reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic, representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, .letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9^2 All 'data and any property which.has been received from
th'c State or purchased wth' funds provided for that purpose

—under-this-Agre.cmcntr shall-.be-the-property- of th'c-Staterand-
shall be returned to. the State upon demand or upon
' tcmtinatiqnpf this Agrecmcnt.fbr any reason.
9.3'' Confidcntialily of data shali be governed by RSA
chaptcr'9l-A or .other existing law. .Disclosure of data
rcquires'prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Repoif') describing la
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the TermiDalion
Report shall be identical to those -of any Final .Report
described in the attached EXI-HBIT A.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO TIIE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the .Contractor. is in all
respects an indcpcndenfcontr'actor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Smie. Neither the Confractor.nor any of its
officers,"employees, agents or'mcmbers shall have authoHty.to
bind, the State or receive any benefits,-.workers', compensation
or other eniolumc'nts providcd;by the State to its employees.

12: ASSrGNMENT/pELlEGATION/Slffia)NTRA(^
The Contractor shall, not assign, or ptheriNnse -tTansfcr-any
interest in this Agreement without tbc,prior written hotioeand
consent of. the State: ■ •'l^onc of tlie Services shaji be
sub^ntractCd by:the Contactor without iHe.-,prior-written
consent of the Stale. - • " v - ...

13." INDEiVtNlFIGATlON.yThc, Contractor shall" defend,
indemnify arid hold I hannless. the State, its, Officers.: and
employees, from and againstiany aDd-all'losses suffered by..,*the
Stale; its officers and employes, and, any'.ahd' all. claiin's,'
liabilities-or"penalties! asscrteid; against the its. officers
and employees, by'oriori.b'chalf of anyrpcfebn, on account pC
based or resuUirig from,. ansing.'Out'-.of (or; which-miay be
claimed to .arise , out' of). ,the acts 'of .omissions o'f the
Contractor; . ••Notwilhstanding;;'tbe;. foregding,- nothing- herein
contained shall beVdeemed,-.to-conrtitute. a,(waiyer. .of;'the
sovereign, insanity .6f the Sfete, which.immunify is hereby
rese'fved lo^he-State. This '.cdyenant.';in; para^aph, .13 shall
suryive.the tcrmmation bfthis Agrecrhent; . • ' ■ . r •

14. INSURANCE; - ^

14-.1. The Contractor shall,-fat- its sole expehse,'\obtkin "and
maintain.-in force, ..and shall.require/;My subcontractor or
assignee to obtain- and .maintain 'm' force,'.the Toliowing
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive-general -.liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death dr. property damage, in am'dunts"
of hot less than Slvp6ci,000)pcr pccureence-and $2,000,dOO
aggregate; and' •.
14.1.2 special cause-dfi loss coverage, fomt.:-coveririg all-
property subject to subpara^ph .9;2.,he;rein, ih -an-amount not-

-lcsslhan-80%of-thc-wholc-replacemcnl"varue of the-propcrtyr—
14;2 The policies describcd'in subpwa^ph i4'.l-|icfeio'shaU
bc .on policy -forms and'chdofecmedts .apprdved^for use.ih.thc.
State of."New Hampshire by the^ N,H. Department of
Insurance, and issued: by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire: ' • - ( :. •
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14.3 The Comraclor shall furnish \o ihc Contracling Oflicer
idciiliflcd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreeincni.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificntc(s) of
Insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under lliis
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificate(s) of
insurance'and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccrtificatc(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting OfficcT identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreemCDt, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is Id compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To tlie extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of Nil. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall

si{
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF.BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisioos hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other paity
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. amendment. This AgreemeDt may be amended,
waived or discharged only by anjn^umcnt in writlne signed
by the parties hereto and only ^r approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or.
in favor ofany party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughoui the A^eement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to e.xplain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

forth in the attached EXHIBtT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement \ylir remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes tlie entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

MK

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals and families in the'Counties of
Belknap and Merfimack who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in
accordance with 24CFR Parts 91 and 576.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall determine Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) eligibility for
individuals identified in Section 1.2, which Includes but is not limited to: ■

2.1.1. Determining individual and family income eligibility in accordance with U.S.
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regulations for ESG, in accordance with
24 • CFR 576. Income eligibility must be assessed every six (6) months of
program participation. The Contractor shall ensure annual income:.

2.1.1.1. Includes all earned and unearned income from all sources that go to
any family member. • •

2.1.1.2. Is calculated by annualizing current income to determine projected
annual income.

2.1.1.3. Is adjusted according participant income increases/decreases. The
Contractor shall ensure all prevention participant households report all
income changes within 30 days of the change occurring.

2.1.2. Documenting eligibility for households applying for Rapid Re-Housing and
Homelessness Prevention services according to HUD guidelines, which includes
but is not limited to collecting and documenting information regarding:

2.1.2.1. Immediate risks/crisis to individuals and families applying for
assistance to determine if steps are needed to avert physical or
psychological danger or threat of immediate housing loss.

2.1.2.2. Basic demographic and contact information, which includes but is not
limited to name, age, dependents, other family, current location,
contact phone numbers and address.

2.1.2.3. Problems as defined by participants that affect housing, such as late
.  .rent,-landIord_problems,_credit..history,_criminaLhistoiy,.employment,

and income.

2.1.2.4. Solutions as defined by what the participant wants or requests from
what is available to him/her.

Coffltnunfty Action Pfoeratn oJ BcIknufiMerTlrnack County CofitfKtor Initial*



o

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Exhibit A

2.1.2.5. Eligibility information, including but not limited to, verification of literal
homelessness or Imminent risk of homeless. Documentation must be
in accordance with HUD's preferred method of verification as noted in
24CFR576. .

2.1.2.6. Additional risks and vulnerabilities for prioritizing purposes, which
include, but are not limited.to, severe rent burdens, domestic violence,

• prior incarceration Or institutionalization,' health and mental Health
issues-f substance-abuse,: and other-specific housing " retention
barriers.

• ■ 2.1.2.7: .*- Written third-party verification of rental arrearages, notices of eviction,
• homelessness, or'utility shutoff notic'esT

2.2. The Cohtractof shall conduct Housing Relocation and Stabilization (HRSj. activities,
which includes but-is not limited to inspecting each unit to ensure housing'rne^s HUD
Habitability Standards, using.HUD's Checklist for Habitabilfty Standards. Additionally,

■  the Contractor shall ensure: " . . _i_i - •

2.2.1. Occupied housing meets State and local housing requirerfients including, but not
.  limited tp, compliance vwth: . . . . . "

2.2'.1.V. ' All applicable state and local housing-codes.-

2.2.'1'.2. Licensing requiremerits.

2.2.1.3. All re.quirernents regarding the condition of,the structure.

2.2.1.4. All requirements regarding the operation of.the housing or services.

.  2.2.2..Occupied housing shajl.meet'the LeadrBased Paint,Poisoning Prevention and
Disclosure Act {42 U.S.C. 4821-4846),-the Residential Lead Based Paint Hazard
Reduction.Act of .1992 (4.2 U.S.C.485.1;-48.56)..and implementing regulations in

■  C^R plHss, subpai^ A, B, H,.J; K, M,.and'R.

2.3. The Contractor' shall- provide finahcial assistance- to eligible individuals identified in
Section 2.1, for,services that include, but are not limited to:

. i'. : - - . . .1

•2.3.1. Rental application fees.

2.3.2. ■Secuntydepo.sits. '
Uitll'ity ■deposife'ana" payments.

2!3.4. Last month's,rent. ■ ■ •
,2.3.5. Moving-cdsts. ". . .

2.4. The Co'ntractbf shall provide'eligible Individuals and families.with Tenant-Based Rental
Assistance (TBRA); .which ihcicides but is hot limited tO: ' "

■'2.4'.'1.- ^ rnaxlthUrh arribunt of"$9.006'in rental assistance fp.be applied toward-monthly
rent arid/or rental arrearages.

. 2.'4;2. .Rental assistance oyecno more-than, a pine (9) month-period.- The .Contractor

ComnurftyAc^Pregnm.ofeenaiepAtetrifflacXCwnly . CQnL'aC.af Ifiaala ' \ .
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2.4.2.1. Enter into a rental assistance agreement with the owner/landlord on
behalf of the program participant, ensuring that the Contractor
receives a copy of all general notices, complaints, and notices of
eviction from the landlord/owner.

2.4.2.2. Ensure each program participant obtains a written lease for the rental
unit, unless the assistance provided is solely for rental arrears. .

" 2.4.2,3. Provide rental and all. forms of financial assistance directly to the
landlord, utility or other thirdvparty on behalf of the participant.

■ 2.4;2.4. Ensure that rental assistance does not- exceed the Fair Market Rent
established by HUD, as provided under 24. CFR part 888.

2.4.2.5. Ensure rental units comply with, H.UD's . standard of rent
reasonableness, as .established in 24 CFR 982.507'.

2.5. The Contractor shali'provide eligible individuals and families'with housing stability case
management. 'Eligible services costs must comply with all. HUD' regulations-in 24..QFR-
576.10,5, which includes but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Developing Housing Budget Plans for all eligible jficlividuals using the, information
identified in-Section 2.1.3 to .ensure participants'have, the ability to sustairi the

■ ' cost of the housing on a long-term basis once'the assistance or subsidy ends.

2.5.2. Assess, arrange, coordinate and ifionitof.the delivery of individuaiizedi.services to
V', ' facilitate. houslng. stability for program participants. whg .Yeslde in. permanent

ripusing^or assist a prograrr} participarit in. pve.rcorning, irnrnediate. barriere to
. .. obtaining housing '

2.6. The Contractpn shallrrnake available., on-going housing stability'case mari.bgernent'.fpr
six (6) moriths'after rehtaf assistance has ended. ^ •

2.7;' The.CbntFactorshall.ensure sufficient licensed'staff .to provide client.level data into the
" New Hahnpshire.Ho.rneiOss Managerpeht Information ,Systeni-(f^H..,HMlS)_.: ^Projects

■ under ,this contract must be familiar with arid follow; NH HMIS policy fhtto^/wwwmh-
•  '^hmisiordV: '

3. IJeportlng kequlrerhents,
3.1 The contractor, shall provide quarterly reports using HMIS'data which include, number

of entries intOj RRH., Prevention and- related cpst.s fpr ail-services by the- 10th day
..followinglthe.end.bhhe.quart^^ , : -

4. Dellvefables of Services • '

4A. the Corijractor shall provide housing stabilization case management.to a, minimum of
.  sWeeh(i6)-househplds.

4.2. The Contractor shair.successfully and rapidly re-house ten (10) households iri safe and
— ..-^'sustained-housing^—' —^ ^ ^

.4..3..,.Jhe Contractor shall .ensure all client level, data In Section 2.7 is entwed into NH HMIS
within five (5) days of the client's entry into the program.

Commun-.tyAcUo'hPreflfBmotMknip.'SitefilrrackCouniy Contfactoflrtflal*.
EjWMJ'A.
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IVIETHOP AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYtVlENT

Emergency Solutions Grant

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A -
Emergency Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds: 100%

CFDA#; 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

"Amount: $f#f^79-SPr^01-7

$74,779 SFY 2018

$149,558 Total

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and In consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for Rapid Re-Housing, Homelessness Prevention and Housing Stabilization
utilizing funds provid^ through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant Program, in an amount not to exceed $149,558.

2. REPORTS.

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:-

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement 2 CFR part 200. Three (3) copies of the
audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of
said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial
report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted .utilizing the
guidelines set forth in "Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions" by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS; PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STAtE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs'*(ShalI mean all
expenses directly or indirectly Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Achvjties, as deterrnined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with 24 CFR 576 as well as airo>^bfe cost standards set forth in 2 CFR
part 200 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines

CAff'BeUcnopMcrT'.mBCkCoutty ExMUIB Contractor Inlliub
Paoe 1 of 2

Data



o  o
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

established by the State. Nonprofit subcor>tractors shall meet the requirements of 2
CFR part 200.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs including all
costs'to the Contractor shall be submitted on a monthly basis by the Contractor for the
amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as
designated by the State which shall be completed and signed by the contractor. The
Contractor shall provide detailed financial expenses information with all paymenit
"requests on a monthly basis.

3.2.1.The Contractor shall submit reimbursement documentation of expenditures of Federal
funds at the time of. seeking-reimbursement for costs. In no ©vent shall, the funds
provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.
Upon'release of additional Federal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for
balance of contracted amount as specified in block 1-.S based on' documentation of
expenditures.

3.3. Review of the State Disallovyapce of Costs: At any time during, the performance of the
Servic^, and.upon receipt of the termination Report or Audited .Financial Report,, the
State 'rriay revjew. all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to

•  date,' Upon such review, the State shajl disallow any items' of expend .which- are' not
deterrhiried to be ali6\ArabIe or are determined to be in excess of'actual'expenditures.
and^'Shall.'by wntt'eh noticfe specifying 'the disallowed; expenditures,.J.'in'fomi;' t
Cbhtfactor of any such disailqwance. If the Sjtate disallows costs for wh.ich.;paymer!t has
not beeh made, it shall refuse to pay su'ch costs. Any amounts 'awarded- to .the
Coritractpr pursuant to this Agreement a.re subject to recapture pursuant to 24 pFR
'Subsection 576.56. • . '

4'. USE OFGFtANT FUNDS. ■

- 4;1.The S.late agrees to prOvide payment for actual costs up to $.149,558as defined by-HUD
underthe'provisions .and applicable regulations at 24 CFR 576 and'24'CFR part.91:-

.4.,2..The'C;pntract6r rnay.amend the.cohtract budget through line item Increases, decreases
or .th.e creation .of,new line ,items.; provided these am.ehdm.erits do not exceed: the contract
price. Sdch:.,am'endments shall'only be made .upon written request to and-vyritteh approval
from the:State. '

.4.3 Cohtormance "to 2 CFR. part 200:'Grant funds are to.be used, only, m'. accordance
with pfocebureSi requirements and.prihciples specified.in 2.CFR part 200.. .. • ... .'

5. CGNTRACtORflNANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.

5.1 Fiscal.'Cohtroi; The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and ..fund accounti.ng
procedures'.which assure- proper disburserheht;of, and accounting-for; grant funds, and any
required non-federal' expenditures.- This responsibility applies to- funds, disbursed in -direct
operations-of the Co'ntr.actbr'. • '

5.f:2, The. Contractor'Shall maintain a financial- management-system'that complies, with
:'Standards*of*Contractor-Financiai.-Management-Systems'-'-or-such-6qulyaiantsy'sfem-as;the-
•State^may'require". Requests fbf'paymeht shall be made according to-section-3.2 of.'thls
agreement' • •

CA/PQ«n(nopA»eftimaekCoaity E>WbltO r^ntraaof Irtifitt
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efir.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows: -

1. Corhpliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
State taws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and (i/lahner of Determlnationr' Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the.Department. ' . ••• •

3. Documentation:.In additiori to the determination forms required by!the Department; the Cbntraclor
shall mairitai'n a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include.all
informatiori:necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
De(5artmerit-re<juests: The Contractor shall furnish the Department'with all forms and docum'ent^lbn
regarding eli9ifc4tityTd8term4na^n&4hat4he-Department-nF^^-Fequegt-er-fe.quirer—=—^

r

.4. .FalriHearings: The;Cpntractor understands thafall appiicants.for.seivices hereunder, as well as
individuals dbclarBd ineligible have a. right.to a.ifair hearing regarding that deterrnir)iatiqn. The
Cdnfractpr hereby co.venants,and agrees that all'applicants fpr services shall be peimitted to fill out
an application.form.and that each applicant or fe-applicant snail be infomned of his/her right to a fair
hearlng'ln accprdance'witli Departnieh't regulations. ,

5. Gratuities'6"r Kickbacks:- tfie Contractor agrees that it js a breach of this.Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the. Contractor, any Sub-Cdhtra'ctor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work delalled irr Exhibit A of this- , .
Contract, the State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreerrient if it Is
determined that payments,.gratulties or offers of employment of any.kind .were offered of received by
any officials'.iofficers. employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Conjractor.

6. Retroactive Payrhents: Notvylthstahdihg anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
othbrdoCurrient. contract or underslandjng, it'i§ expressly understood and agreed byihe'parties '
hereto, that'no' payments will be made hereunder to reimburse-the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for ahy services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the:Contract
and no-payments shall, be made for e)qDenses Incurred by the Contractor for any.sen4c^' provided
' pribFtdthe date on vi/hich Ihejndividua) .appjies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the

federal regulations)'prior tb-a determination that the individual is eliglble for siich services. "' ''

7. CoKditipns of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the 'contrary contained In the Cpntract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate br.require the Department to purchase sefvices

•. hereunder.at arrate, which .reimburses the Contractor Jh excess orthe Contractore costs,.at.a rate
which exceeds the,,arnpunts reasonable and necessary .tO'ass.ur;e the.qyality.of;such ̂ rvice, onat.a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals prplher thirdparty.
funders for such.service. If at any time dyring the term of this Contract or afteV rerreipt of'the Final •

• Expeiidilure Repbrthefeundler! the Pep'a.rtmerit'shall detenminerth'at.the Coritractbr has us^;
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense.other.than such costs,. or has received-.payment
in excess of.such cPsts or In excpss.pt'such- rate's charg^-.by the Contraclorto ineligible individuals

.. Of other third''partv funders. the Department may elect_to:-__:. ^ •/ .
7.1. • Renegotiate lhe.rates for payment-hereunder. ih whlch event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future piayment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of cost's; -

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contra'cfor-lnitials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the'Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

,8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal-Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
incorrie received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period,.said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to .the Department, and-
to'include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records. and original evidence of'costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations'of
in-kipd contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other recordsirequested or r^uired by the
Department. • • . : ^ •

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of.-.
■  ■' ■ services during the Contract Period,, which"records shall include ail records of.apiplicaliph a.rid

eligibii.ity (including all foims required to determine eligibility for each such recipient); records'
regarding the provision of services and;all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain-

■ payrh.enl for such services.
8.3. MedicallRecords: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the

Contractor, shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services. i
'  .4 ' •• *' • . ^ '

9. Audit; Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within'60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal!year. It'.ls recommend^ that the report" be prepared in accordance^vvith the pYovlsion of
Office of Management and.Budget Circular A-.l'33, "Audits of States, Local Governments, 'and Noh

"  Profit O.rgartizatiohs" and the provisions of Standards for.Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programf; Ac.tiy'|ties;ahd Functions, Issued by the US General;Accbuntihg.Office (iSAO standards) as
they pertain to.financial compliance audits. . •• v,
9.1- . Audh'and Review: Dunngthe term of this'Contract and the period for retention hefeurfder, the

.Depaftment',.the .United States Deparimerit of Health and'.HurnaaServices.and an/of their>''"
.  , i .designated representatives shall have access to all reports and recprd.s maintained pursuant to

the (Dontracl for purposes of audit; examination, excerpts'and transcript's. • .
•- 9.2..."Audit..Uabilities: In addition to ari'd not' in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

.- undet;stood arid agreed- by the"Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for afiy state
or federal audit exceptions and-shall retUrn to the Department, all payments made uhdenthe.'
Cbntract.to .vyhlch exception has been taken or which haye t^een disallowed because of such an
exception.. - •- .

10. Confidentiality of Records: All Information, reports, and records maintained, hefeunder'or collected
In connection, with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and s.hali hot
be disclosed'by-theDontractor, provided ho\yever, that pursuant to state laws and the regulati.ons of
the Department regarding the use and' disclosufe of such information, disclosure may be made to "
public officials requiring such informatlori in connection with their official duties arid -for purposes .
dlrectlyPqnrife'cte'd toThe'adrilinislratlorf'of th"e'se'rViCes"and'th"e'COrit'raAt;'ah;d 'provide"d furth'b'r; that—
the .use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for apy purpose hot .
directly connected.with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's respohsibilltie's with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except op written consent of-the recipient, .his
atto'mey of guardian.

Exhibit C-Spedal Prbsnslons ^ Conlractorinillals
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

ail costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of parent hereunder, S.uch Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Departments

11.2. Final-Report:. A flnal report shall be submitted within thi^'(30)'days-bfter4he end of the t'efrri
of this Contract. The Final Report shall- be in a form satisfactory to the Depaftrnent and shall
contain a summary-statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the. Proposal
and'other information requiredlby the Department;

12. Completion of Sorvlcos: DisalloVv'ance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of uha
maximum number of units provided for in the Contr'act.and upon payrnent.of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such dbligations as,
by-the terms-'ofthe Contract are to be performed after the end ofIhe term of this Contract and/or

"  ■ tiorrofthe-Contractj-shalHerininate, provided-howeverrthattfr^oirrevig^ofthe~
Final Expenditure Report the'Department shall.disallow .any expenses claimed by the Cbntfaclor as
costs hereunder the Department shalhretain the'right, at its discretion, to.'deduct the arriouht of such
expenses asiare disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. ■ .

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contracl shall include the following, • •
statement: • . -
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a, Contract with the Stale

of New Hampshire; Department'of Health and Human-Services, .with furids provided-in part'
by the.State of New Hampshire and/or such other fundjhg sources.as were available or .-
required, e.g., the.United-.States Departrhent of-Health and Human Services. • •

14. Prior-Approval and.Copyright.Ownership: All materials (written, video; audio) produced'or ■
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval frorfi DHHS before printinQi production,
distribution or'use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownerishlp fdr ariy and all original materials
produced, including-, but not limited to, brochure's, resource directories, pfotpcols or guidelines,
posters,- or reports. Contractor shall not. reproduce-any rnaterials produced- under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS. . ~ -

-• I . - -.-'i • - ,

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Lawsa'nd Regulations: In the. operation of arfy facilities
for-pfpwding sefvicesHhe.'Contractor shall comply vvith all lawsyrorders and regulations of federal,
state; county.and municipal authorities and: with any direction of-any Public Officer'or-officers
pursuant.tp laws which shall Impose ah order or duty uppri the contractor with respect to the- *
operation of the facility or the provision" of the services'at such facility. If any governmental license or
perrnit'shall'be required-fof the operation of the said facility or the perforrhanceof the said,services,- •

.  .the Contractor will'procure.said license or perrnit, and will at all times corriplyiwith.the terms>and ̂
'cofidltlons of-,each. such license or permit. In, connection v/ith the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hpreby covenantsarid agrees that, during the term of.this Contrecli the facilities shall- •
comply vi/ith all rules; orders- regulations; and requirements of the State-Office "of the Fire.Marshala.nd
the local rire, protection agency,.and shall be in conforrnance with.local'bullding-and zoning codes, by-
laws'.andreguiations.-, - ■■ •" * - " _ - '

16. Ecjual:Eniplpymentppportunlty Plari".(EEOP):"The Coritraclor vyill prbyide'an Equal Ernployment -
Opportunity Plan (EEO.P) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs-(OGR),'if lt has

-  received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,0b0 or rnore and has-60 or

Exhibit C-special Prowsiona Conlra'ctor Inlllals
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide.an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP: Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification fom to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http.7/www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf. ]

17. Llrhlted English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Orderl 3166, Improving Access to
Serylces for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited Eriglish proficiency (LEP). to ensure-
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of'the Civil
Rights Act of 1,964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
m^ningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The '
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101,,(cuiTently, $150,000) ■ .

Contractor,Employee Whistleblower Rights and RequiremenTsTo Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)'

(a) This"contract and employees working on this contract will be subject tp the whistleblower rights '
and'.remed.ies in-the piiot program on Contractor employee whistlebiowerprotections establishedat
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828'Of'the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year.2013 (Pub. L.
112r239)and.FAR3;908.

•  (b) The (iontractor shall irifpnn its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
ofemplbyee wriistlebiower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described In section
3.908 ofthe Federal Acquisition Regulation. , -

(c)The Contractor shall ins'ert.the s'ubstance'pf this clause. Including this paragraph (c), In all.' .
subcontracts.o.verthe simplified acquisition thre'shold: * '

19. Subcontractors: DHiHS re^nizes that the Contractor may choose to use subbbntractore with
greatef'expertise to p.erforrh certain health care seiyices or functions for efficiency br'conyenience;
but.the-Contractorshaii.retain.the,respb^ accpuntabillty forthe.functipn(s). Prior.to; . .
subcohtractihg, the'Cpntractor'shalj.eyaluate the subcontractor's ability.to performjhe'delegated
.function(s). This is accdm'plisHed-through a written agreement that spetlfi^ activities and reporting
fesponsibllities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing' sanctions If
the;subcohtraptor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are s'ubject to the same contractual
cpriditions .as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor cbrhpiiance
with thpsecdhditiqns]
When the Contractor delegates a function,to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the.following:.
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractbr's,ability, to perform the activities, before delegating

19.2. Have'a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies, activities and reporting-
responsibilities and how' sanctions/revocation will be managed if the-subcontractor's
perfdrfhance Is not adequate

19.3. Moriitorthe subcontractbr's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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"Sr.

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule idenlifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As. used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct end indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance v^h cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual v/hich is

entitled "FinanelahManageffient-Guideltnes^nd-whieh-cont&ins-the^egulations-geveming-the-finaftctal—
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive ftjnds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the tola! cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, .rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to rnean ail such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the N^ Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not si^plant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Extilbll C ~ Special Provisions Contractor Initials.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as foiioyvs:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without iimitatiori, the continuance of"payments, in whole or in' part,
under this Agreernent are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
Including any subsequent changes to* the appropriation or availability of funds affected "by
any state or federal legislative or executive-action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreernent and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, In vyhole or in part, in no ev«nt shall.the
State ,be liable for ariy payments hereiinder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the, event of a reduction, temiination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
Slate shall have Ihe.rightto withhold payment urilil such.fui^ds beco.rrie available, if ever.-Jhe,
State.shall have the right to reduce, te'rmirtate or modify seArices. uhder'thrs'Agreemerit
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, teirniriation 'or modification.
f heiState shall not ,ba required to transfer funds from -any other source or account ihto.-the
.Acwunt(s) identified in block 16 of the Gehera!".proyisions, Account 'Nurnber, or. any other
.account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. •,

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract; Termination, is" amended by adding the"
following i.anguage;' • * •

10.1 The-State niay terrhinate the Agreement at any time for any reason," at the sole discietipn of
'the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written nptice that the State is .exercislng its
option to terminate.the Agreement.

,10.2 In the event of early termination," the Contractor-shajl, within 15 days'of;nptt.ce of early
terfnihation, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for" services under the
Agreement,, including but not limited, to, identifying the present and fulure heeds of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and, establishes "a. process to rrieet those needs.

10.3 - ThP.'Cqhtractor shall-fully .cooperate with the. State .'and shall promptly provide delaijed
•  infolmatipn to suppbrl; the "Transilioii-Plan .including, .but not limited toy a.ny. infqrmatbh or

data re'qUesjed by^the State f:eiated to the te"]rmlna1ipn of the Agreement and Transition P|a.n
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions "of the Transition pjan^tdihe State as

•  requested..-. - ■

10.4 In the event. t.hat,se|yices under the Agreem.ent. inciudihg but hot 'limlted'to cirents receiving
seryices iinder the Agreement are tranSltidned to having servlces.deilvefed by-ahother.entity

-inciudihg contracted •providers;, of the "Stale,"the Contractor shall "pfbyide a; process for
unihtefrupted'delivery'of services in tlie Transition Plan.' • ' "

•1Q.5 The Cphiractpr shall establish a method of notifying.: clientsjand other. affMled/individuals'
about the transition, the' Contractor shall .Ihclude' the proposed- conirnunicatio.ns in its
Transition Plan submitted to.the State as described above. -t v v,

3. Subparagraph ..14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is delete.d; and" tHe-following
. subparagraph is added:

14.1.i cprnprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of.bodily injury, death or property
• - darhage;-in~amount$-.of-hot-,le5S-than-$250,b00-per- claim-and-$1;090;000-per-pccun"ence-

with-additipna.i general liabliity umbrella Insurance coverage of not !ess.,than. $2,0.00,0.00 per
.  occurrence;.and • : r ='.• .'i';. •

4. The" Divislon-rdserves the right to renew the'Contract for up to three (3) addltidnal ye%rs. subject to
the contihued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services''a'n.d" ap'plpval by the
Governor and Executive Council. yj

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Genera! Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIRCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with' the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:'

ALTERNATIVE I - POR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION^-CONTRACTORS • - . •
US DEPARTMENt OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS-

This certification is' required by the. regulations. Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wofkpiade'Act of*198^ (Pub.'L. 100^90*. Tftle V/Su>tlUfrp;.4.1 U.S.G-'tOTet*seqO..flie.Jaiiuary 31.
1989 regulatioris'vyere amended and published as Part 1! of the May 25; 1990 Federal-Register (pages
2.1681-21691), and require'certific^ion by.granfees;(and,bylnferencev sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior td award, that they will mainitain a'drug-free workplace. Section 30f7.630(c) of the
regulation provides that'a grantee (and by inference,'SLjb--grahtees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
-may:eleet4e^ai^:One^el4ifieatiofHb^^^'epaMiTiehHfrea^federaWsoal^^HiHjM:^f^e^ieate5-f
each grant during the federal fiscal.year covered by the cert.ification. the certificate set'out.below is a
rnaterlal representation of fact upon^vyhich reliance is pjaced when the agency-av/ards the g.rant. False
certificatidh or violation of the certification, shall be grounds for suspension of payments,-.suspension.or
termination of gfahls', or govemmerit wide siuspensioh or debarment. Contractors using.thls.fprrh should
send It to:' ■ ' ' • • i -

Commissioner

.NH pepar^ent of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Cpnco}d;- NH 03301-6505

1. The grarit'ee.certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free v/orkplace by:
1 . t. Publishing a.statement riotifying'ernpioyees that the unlawful rhahufacture. distribution,-

• dispensing, pd'ssessiori or use of a.controlled substance is'proHiblled in the grantee's
workplace ahd'specifyihg the actions thaVwill be taken ag'aihst employees for"violation of such

'• prohibitipn;" ' ' '• ' - ■ • T "
1.2. . Establishing an ongoing drug-fVd'^warehess.program to inform empbyees about •

12.T,; ,The.dangefs of drug at>use in theworiiplace;
1.2.2.^ i the grantee's Rojicy.of.rnaintalning a drug-free woVk^^ .

. 12.3.. Anyi available drug couh^llng, rehabijitatibn, and employee assistance programs; and
12.4. The penalties that may t)e.imposed upon employees for drug abuseylolatiqns

occurring In the woi^place; !
1.3. • Making it.'a requirement that each -employee to be engaged In the perfohtiarice of the grant be

given a copy of the stalem'ent reqiiiried. by paragraph (a); ' ' '
1.4. Notifying the employee In the stdtement required by paragraph (a) that, as a'condiiion of

employment.un.clerjhe grant,.thejempto^
1.4.1 ./Abide-by the terms of the sta'terhent; and .... .

.  14.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her convictipn for a violation of a cfiitiinal drug
■ -^''-siatute-bccurrihg in th'e.wofk'place no later than five, calendar day^ after such"

'■ ' ■' ■^corivictjoh; .
1.5.- Nbtifyihg the agehcy In writlhg.-within'teh calendar days after recetvirig notice under

—;..subparagraph--1:;4;2.frorh'^an,employee or..pthery/ise receiving actual,riolice.bf suchiconvlclioh.- •
.  Emplpyers'Of- convict^ ernployees rn'ust;provlde;,r^blice;. including'position. title,to'everygranl

pfficer pn who.^ grant activity, the convicted employee vy,as working, unless the Federal agency

-ExhibitD'-Certiritatiori regarding Drug Free ConlracJor Initials
Workplace Requiremonls
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant; •

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4, .1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the slte($) for the performance of work done in
connection with'the specific grant.

Place of- Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merriinack Counties, Inc.

May 17, 2016
Dale Name: rW

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit D - Certificalion regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials ^ .
Workplace Requirements f r-
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restridions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.G. 1362, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Secljons 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENt OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS.

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): " ' .
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
-Child Support Enforcement Program under.Trtle IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX ■ "
'Medlcaid Prograrii under title XIX
'Community ServicesiBlock'Grant'under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the,best of his or her knowledge and beiiefj that: • . •

1. No. Federal appropriated funds have'been paid or will be paid by or pn behalf of the undersigned, to
any. person fbrjnfluenclng or attempting to influence an officer or ernployee of any agency,: a fytember

• of dongressi an officer or employee of Congress, or an ernployee of a Member of Congress in
■ cbnnkition with the awaidihg ofany Fedafal contract, continuation, renevyal, amendment, or
m.odrficatiori of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds'bther than Federal.appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any person for' •
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an-officer or ertipioyee of 'Cphgress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, ican, or cooperative agreem.ent (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete arid.submll Standard Form LLL, (btsclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shalLrequire that the language.of this certification be included iri the award'
document.for sub-awards at all.tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grante, and contracts under-grants.
loans, and cobperative.agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify-and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this'trarisaction
was made, or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or enteririg into this '
trarisactlon imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person'who fails to file the required
certification shalVbe siubject toa ciyil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $lOO,OOO for'
each such failure.

Contractor Name:
Cofiunimlty.;AcOon Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

-  MaV 1'7(-2016 //\
---Date — ' Name: Linlefield-- —■

•  ' title:. Executive:Direclor '

. Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying - Contractor (hllials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identmed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76.regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and-further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certiification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction; If n^essary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will" be
corisldered.iri;connection with the NH pepartrrrent of Health and Hurnan Services^; (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospecth/e primary
participant to fumlsh a certification or an explanation shall disqualify, such p.erson frorri participation in
this transaction. '

3. The'certification In this clause is a material representation of fact'iipon which reliance was'placed
wlien.DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined thaithe prpspectlve
pfiriiary.participant.knbwingly rendered an erroneous certificatiph,' iniaddjtiph to other rertiedjes .
available to the Federal Gbverhment, DHHS rh.ay terrriiriate this transaction for causepr default.

4. ■ The prospective prirtiary participant shall provide immediate wntten notice to the-DHH^ agency to
whorn this,proposal (cpntract) is submitted if atany time the prospective prirpary participant'.learris.'
that its certification was erroneous when siibrnltted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terrnsTcpvered trarisactloh,".'del3arfed,'"'suspended.'' ''ineiigiblei''/lowertier covered ■'
transactiori,f "participariti" 'person;" ''primary covered transaction-,'! 'principal,' 'proposal," and
.'volurltarlly excluded,';as usecl In this clause, have the;rneanings\set butih lhe Definitions/and

"• Coverage sections of the rules Implerhehting Executive^Order 12549: '45..CFR PaTt 76. Seethe-- -
attached definitions.'", ;■ .•> • ' • ' • ' ' * " * "•

6. , The.prpspective.primary participan.t agrees.by submitting this proposal (Mr)tract) that, should the .
proposed covered transactioh be entered into," it shall not knowingly enter ihto ah)r lower, tier, covered

'  ■ transaction with a pereon vyho'is debarred, susperided, declared ineligible, or yoluhtarily excluded'
frorn participation in this covered transaction, unless aiithorized-by DHHS.'' "

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by subrhitting this proposal that, it will include the
clause titled'Certificatton Regarding,Debarment, Suspension,,Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - <
LoWei; Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHhiS-,, without modification, in all lower tier covered

-.^transactions.ahd in airsolicitations for.-lpwer tier Covered,transactions. .

B. A participant in a covered transaction rnay rely: upon a certification of a prospective particjpant in a
lower tier co'^efed transaction that it i.a.not debarred, suspended, ineligible, of Irivoluntarily excluded
frQm-the-covered-lransaGtionruhless-iVknows-thatlheicertificatipnls-eroriedus^Aparticipant-may-^

• decide th.e method'and. frequency by which it determiries the eligibjlity of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not.required tp, check the Npnprpcureme'ntiList (of exCluded.parties).

9. Nothing cpritained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith' the certification requjred by this clause. The knoV^edge;arid

Exhibit F-CertlficalionRegardlnB Debarrncnt, Suspension ■ Contractor Initials
And-Other Responsibility Matters trf^ci.wDHHS/1,107'13 Page1of-2' Date f\ lyj
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is-
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prosp^tive primary participant certifies iQ the best of its knowledge and beliefj that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, by any Federal department or agency;
11v2., bay.e:n;ot within:a threeryear period'preceding'this.propdisal (contract) been^wnvicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered, against them for.comrhissio.n of, fraud or a crirn|nal offense in
connection with.obtaining, attempting to obt'aip, or perforrning a publicjFederal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under apublic transaction: violation of Fedefalor State antitrust. '•

• statutes or.commission'of'emb^zlement. theft,'forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of-
"records, rnflking falsft sffltprnftpfg nr rfirtpK/ing stnlpn prnpprty;

11.3.. are nbtipresently Indicted .for otherwise, criminally or civilly charged by agoverpm.ental entity
(Federal, State.or local) with commlssion'^of any^of the offenses enumerated in paragraph"(l)"(b)

'• oft.hls:'certificatio.n;.and, •
11.4; hwe^not withinra threeryear period preceding th'is application/proposal had one or more public

transactions (Federal, State or. local) terminated for cause or default."

12. Where .the. prospective prirhalypartiCipant is unable tccertify to any of the statements in this
certiffcatiori, such prospective.participant shali.attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). "

LOWER Tier COVERED TFtANSACTlONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower" tier participant, as

defined in-45 CFR Part TS.-ce'riifiesto the best of its kn.o^edge and belief that it and its.principals:
13.1. are npt preseritly debarred, suspendedj-'proposed (or debarment,!dec)ared:ineligible, or •

i vol.uht.anly excluded frorh.participation in this transaction by any federal'department or agency.
13.2.:. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the. above; such

prospective participant,shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract):. > .

14. The prospective .lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include thls'clause.entitled-'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension; Ineli'giblllty, and
Voluntary Exciuslon - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all-lower tier covered
transactions and'inairsollcitations for lower tier covered transactions, --rs

Contractor Name: r

Community Actipn Program Belknap-Merriraack.Counties, Inc.

May 17. 20.16

Date ■ ' ' - Name:. Ralph uttleficld
.  .Title:'' Executive Director.

Exhibit F-Certification Re^rding Deturmeni, Suspension Contractor Ihillals
AfxJ Other,Responsibility-Matters '
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREIVIENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRItVIINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employrnent practices or in
the delivery of seivices of benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Eitiployment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which,'adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the'Safe Streets.Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are.prbfiibited frorri discriminating, either'jri employment practices or in the delivery, of-services or
benefits: on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employrnent Opportunity Plan requirements;

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.G.*Section'2006d, which prohibits recipients'of federalfinancial
assistartce from discriminatirig on the basis of race, color: or national origin in any program or activity);

? the Rehabilitation Act.of 1973 (29 U.S.C". S"ectlofi,794), which prohibits recipients of F^eral^financial
assist'ahce.frpm discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Arnericanswlth Disabilities Act.of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34); which.prohibits
discrimihatioh and ensures equal, opportunity for persons with disabilities in employrnent; State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities; and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination oh the basis of sex iri fede.raljy assisted education programs;

- the Age'DiscrimJnallon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits dis.crimination on the
basis o1,age in programs^or activities receiving Federal fi.nahciai assistance.' It does;not.include . •.
empioyment discrimination; . ' '

- 28 G.F.R. pt; -STCU.S. ID.epartmen.t of Justice Regulations - OJJpP Grant Programs); 28.C,F.R. pt. 42.
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations -^Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment pjjpqrt.unity;. Policies
and Pro,ceduresj; E?(ecutiye.Order No. 13279 (e'qu.al protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organization's); Executive Order No. 13559, which' provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria'fbf partnefships with faith-based and rieighborhood'organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Departrnent of Justice FRegulations - Equal Treatment for Fa.lth-Based
Orgariizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
,Act (NPAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-23.9, enacted January' 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of.Contract.Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal fbr certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate'set out below is a rnaterial represeniation of fact upon which rejiance is placed when the
•agency a'^ards.the grant. Fa^certfficatioh or violation of the certification sTtalTbe grounds for
suspension qf.paym.ents, suspension or teirnination of grants, or government wide" suspension or'
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Fedefa) or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after'a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
tt^e applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Bclknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

7May 17.2016

Date Name:

Title:

^Iph LiSefield
Executive Director

tnnxA

Rev. 10^21/14

Extiibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONIWENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or le^ed or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to chiidre'n under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal prograrris either
directly^or through State or local govemrnents, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.' The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities fund^ solely' by
M^lcare or Medicaid furids, and portlons.of facilities used,for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary, penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order orr the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions'agrees, by signature of thd Contractor's
representative as Identified in .Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General. Provisions, to execute th'e following
certification: ' "

1. By .signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
•.with all applicable provisions of Public Lawi03-227, Part.C, known as"the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: .
Corhmumty Action Program'BelknapTMerrimack Counties, Inc.

• May 17. 2016 .

Dale Name:
Title;

Ralph LitUefi^
ExecutivcDiiectbr

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Cdnlractor. Inltlats
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health, Insurance Portability arid Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 -
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein,-"Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor.that-
receive; use or have access to protected health information underthls Agreement and "Covered
Eritity" shall mean the'State-of New.Hampshire;-Department-of Health-'aild Human'Servlces. =-

<1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall' have'the' s'arhe nieaning as the terrh "Breach" iri section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "^Business^Associate".has the meaning given such terrn in section'-160.103 of Title 45, Code
nf FpHpraf Rpgi ilatihng L ^

c. "Covered. Ehtltv" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal R^ulatlons.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section :i 64.50,1.

e. 'Data Acareaatlon' shall have the sarhe meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the terrh "health care operatloris"
In 45 CFR Secfibn 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Ecoriomic and Clinical Health
Act; TItleXllli-Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Relnvestment Actof
2009.

h. "HIPAA" rheans'the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability'Act of'1996, Public Law
104-191 and the .Standards for Privacy. and'Securlty of Individually Identifiable Health
Information,. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and'amendrnents thereto.

I. "Individual" Shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall'Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). .

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean 'the Standards.for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
■  Information ■at:45-CFR Parts 160"and"164, promulghled under HIPAA by the United'States

Depariment'df Health-and; Human Services.' • • " ' -

.k.' "Protected'HealtKlhfbrmatlo^ shalihave thje sarhe meanlr^"astheTefrn-"prbfecte
Informatiori- 'ln 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the.information created or received by
Business Associate-from-or-on behalf of CoveredEhtlty. /7 ~

3/2014 Exhlbill . ContradofInitials ^
Health Insurance'Pdrliablllly'Acl •
Business Assoda'le Agreement

Pa'ge.lofe . Data
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee. /

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, ,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate-Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI it! any manner that wpuld constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I.. - For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose. PHI to a
• third.party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be, held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in. accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d- ^The-Business-Associate-shall notrunless-such-disclosure is-reasonablynecessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by.law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Porlabillly Act
Business Associate Agreement
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional re^rictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be^boUnd. by such additional restrictions and shalj not di.sclose PHI in viojation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by ariy additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. ' The Business. Associate sKallvnotify the Covered Entity's-Privacy Offiber immediately
after the Business Assoeidte becomes av/are of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the.Agreement'including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security Incident thatmay have an impact pn.the
protected-health inforrhation of the Covered Entity. -

b. The Business Associate shall Imrnediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any ofthe above situations. The risk assessrhent shall include, but not be
limited to: ' . ' .

o The nature and extent of the protected health inforrnation Involved, including the
•  types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identifieation:
0 ■ •THe uriauthbrized person used-the protected'health- information or to whom the

•di^losufe was'fnade; - ' .
"  o ■ -Whether the protected health information was actually acquired of viewed

- 0. ̂ 'Thebxtent'to v/hich the-risk to the protected health Iriforrhatioh-has been
mitigated!

The Business Associate shall c6rhplete:the risk assessment within 48 hours ofthe
breach ajid imrnediately report the findings of the risk assessment in" writing to the
Covered-Entity •

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Busines^.-Associate shall make-available all 'o'f its internal policies and 'p/bcedures, books
arid records relating to the use and disclosure'bf PHI received from, br cfeatecl or

•  -Teceived'-bV the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Ehti^'to the 'Secretafy for
purposes of determining Covered Entity^s cqrnpliance with HiPAlA arid the Privacy and

' /Security Rule:'- ' " '

e. .Business.Associate shall require all of its business associates that, receive, use or have '
'■ access-to PHI- Cinder the Agreement, to'agree jp writing to adhere to the same' _ '

■  festribtidns andtepnditibn^s oji.the use-arid discjosure of PHf cbntairied hereih; ihcludirig
-- '~-^TiTe!dutyToTeturri or desEoy thePHI aV-proVided Unde'FSectFbh-^^^ Cqyefed_Ent]ty-

. sHali bb^ohsidered a direct thii^^^ party beneficiary" ohhe. Contractor's tsusihess assqciate
•agreerhents vi/ltti Contractor's intended business associates, who v/iljbe receiving PHI '

.  - ■ ■ ' ■ ■ \ ...
,3/2014 Exhibill- ContractorInilials

Health Insurance Portabiliy Act . .. ^
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shali be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures.relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered .Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. VVithin ten (10) business days, of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days.of receiving a written request from,Covered Entity for an
arnendment of PHI or a jecord about an indlyi^ua! cohtajned in a Designated-Record.

-Set,- the,Business Asisoclate' shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
arnendmd^f incorporate^any such amendment to enable Qovered Entity to fulfil! its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and inforrhation related to
•  such disclpsures as would be. required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an

individual for an accounting of disclosures, of PHI in accordance .wlth"45.CFR Section
164.528. - - ■ ;

■j. .Withlh.ten (lO).business daysiof receiving a written request frpm Covered Entity for a-
request fp.r an .accounting o.f disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall' rriake.available
.to Cdydfed' Entity, such ..information as Covered.Entity, may require to;fUlfill.lts-obilgaUons
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in,accordance with'45 CFR
Section i.64.528:. . ' • '

k. In, the,event any Individual requests access to; amendment of, or accounting pf PHI
.....dlrectiy--from the Business Ass.ociate, the Business Associate,sha.ir.wthjri two.(2) *

business days forward such request to Covered.Entity!: Covered Enti.ty shali have the
responsibility ofttesponding tO;foiyi;arded .requests. However, if forwarding the..- •-
ihdlviduarVrequest.to CbveredEntity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIP'AA arid the Privacy and Becurity Ruie, the-Business'Associate
shall iristead respond to the Indivlduai's reqiie.st as required by such la\w and,notify
C.overed.-Entlty of such response a.s soon as practicable. •

I. Within ten (10) business.days of termination of-the Agreement, for any reason; the. •
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as'specified by Covered Entity, ali PHI. .
received from, or created or received by the Business.:Assocjate in cbnne'ctiori with the

.jAgreerhent, and shall not retain any copies or^bbckTup!tapes of'.sucH.PHI.^.if-.fqtum cr
.destruction is not-feasible, or the disposition of the PHI-has been.otherwlse agreed to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend thb prote'cti.bris of the
Agreement; to. such PHI and limit further,uses'and disclosures of such PHItoXhose
puiposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so.long as" Business . ^ -

3/2014 Exhibit I Cohlractor Initials ^
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission, provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose. PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate^
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an' opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) IVIIscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended .
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take siich action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect.to the PHI provided.by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agr'eement shall be resolved
.  to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPM, the Privacy and.Securlty Rule. _

3/2014 . Exhiblll Contraclor InlUals ;
Health Insurance PorlaWiity Act .
Business Assodale Agreement „/✓/'
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Segregation, if any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terrns and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) 1, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the .
standard terms and conditions (P-37),. shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

Ifsl WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

JlnkcH M14
The State ̂

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties„In

Name oUhe Contractor

c.

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Ccwimis^igiw
Title of Authorized, Representative

Date

Slgnatd^e omuthorizecT f^presentative

Ralph Littlefieid
Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Director
Title of Authorized Representative

May 17. 2016
Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modrfications resuit in.alotal award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject .to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award-subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source •
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
-9.—Unique identlfier-oUhe-eotity (DUNS-#)-
10. Total compensation and names of the lop five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
~ revenues are greater than $26M annually and

10.2. Compensation informajJon is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award'or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply \wlth the provisions of
The .Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal -
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Community AcUon Program Belknap-Merriraack Counties, Inc.

May 17, 2016 Si-
Date Name: ^ph Litweficld

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Irttlats
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is: 07-399-7504

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or morejn annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants,- subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

•X' NO' YES

3.

If .the answer to. #2 above Is NO, stop here , • . .

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following-

Dobs the public have access to Information about the conlpehsatfon of the executives in your
business of organization through periodic repprts filed under section 13(a) or 15(d);0f'the S,ecurities
ExchangeAct of 1934.(15 U.S.e.76m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the lnternar'Reve"nue:Code of-
'1986?.- . ■ ■ ■ ■■

NO YES

If the, answer to #3 above is YES, stop-here

If the answer to jW above is NO, please answer the follpv/ing:

4. The names,arid compensation of the five most highly compensated .officers in your business or -
orgahizatipn are asfbiiows:. '' • \

Narne:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amburit:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713
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